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E3u of 3h Statis ice It repoited that ebr nary pr vate sc ctor jot rose
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lervices 13 isod on th APP research believe much it ths owth ama

fr malI en midsiic fir sis

Alfhoug WI oaE comp mice of at zo ie care ol client base .s iiiade

up of sma an inidsizo firms business segment is veiy large ar cur

eea shows we work ith less than parc nt of these potential her Is

air ually We hr liese uiitmppr oppc itunity to servo these lirnis

Wi nancial condition rotter ts characteristic of ou hueness It akes

or ly limited capital Ic go ate ii company in to sustain its gi
wth

we outinely erat cas and ea have be en wi
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eht roe Prudene elates hat ci ret sir soiii of the excess 151 Oil
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We have been paying cash dividends to shareholders sirce 2OO Du ng lost

yr ar first quarter our boaid declared $0 hare qua tony dish ibu

tio $0 56 per share annual payout in 2011 dint uted $80 Ilion

shareholders Our board lies increased the qufterly ividend ar sinc we

ritiated payout he most recent inc ease came ir hebi uai 2012 whe

tho quafte ly rate was lifted to $0 per sha

Accounts ecoivable is oui single most impoftant fir ar ial onset Yea end

receivables totaled $493 sllion up 17 port ent from the ye er earlier amo

And equivalent to 38 porte of total asseO pars in ot çod
and dif icult times our colloction experierrce as been connistently positive

That is partly cue to an absence of cu4ome and indristiy ncentratior

But it also is due to careful attention to he creditwortl ness of cx sting ar

prospoctive cli nts and diligent mon torinq of utotarrding alance apli

soles outstanding vves days yoa well witl thc rar ge of

our normal experience

Ftobert Ha Intern itioi al has ong reco of rveting to develop our

brands In ieee nt yearv we have had success combining traditiona advor

ing effoffs such as radio and billboa ds with ieavie of online

diqital marke ting activities he latter include iai ma keti web adve us

ing paid neart nd interactive social media campaigns

Ou efforts to promote ur ni ends go beyo adve tis alone believe

havir ig strong puolic clef ions and thougf leadershif progr ems or oui

ng brande en cr ofvit oar incas or It no ond ii trrrcl Auc

ubsidi vy We want to be the company our clients tur to fc ivice and

assista ce ci staffing job placer rent and bu ci es end isle onsu tint We

recently we able to enqaqe whole crow gener at or of clients andidatos

or prospects with liqhtheai ted vi6eo cerieL on the cC don of

sc cceAsful job seai ch Invest ng in on brands has booi or II continue to

be strategic imperaf ye for our company

Our specialized service capabilities ilno help set apaft vo been

succos efu in combining improved perec nalinod raice levels with cow

generations of technology based tools his
give oui usto cero tf bent of

both worlds We have ri ore than bO ye ars of exp non cc ting cnd p1 cc

mg top ta enf with businesses rovid ng spec at ed nervic in wfraf we

best end its what cur cI ents tell uo they value nt
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In 1948 thc Bob Halt pioner red the business of specialty acc ounfing

and tinance recru ting Current management puichased Bob Halts business

in 986 md hogan to expand on his early efforts building the company

inC the global eader in accosn ing and finance staftinq The three divsions

that servo those professions are Accountemps Robeit Half inonr

counting and Robert Haf Managemont Rosos ces the bUsiness we

started in 997 Combined thEy ge erate more thai alt of companywide

revenues Dunro the 19903 we extended our speciali ed staffing concept

to orher otcssio mal sciplines with the introduction of Officeleam 1991
bei7 Halt Legal 1993 obeft Half technology 1994 and fi he Crc itive

Coup 1999

provides skillcd acconntng personrel on temporary basis

It our Ia gest division with 2011 rovenues of $1 bil ion epresenting

37 or ent of the coi parate total Accountomps ful yew revenue irv eaed

percent over 01 and tour quarters produced so io doubIedijit

peiocntage yaw to year 3ravlth

provides senior level accounting

and tinance protessionals on temporaiy basis often for longe du atiori as

si jnments his diviv on had reverir es ast year of $460 million up IL per

cr nt year ovs year and opt ii alent 12 por ent of the comp snywidc total

fobert Halt snagement Resources also fi oquently pr vides oxperienced

adily avr lab frirf statt to otiviti abil ty to 81 on our specialized

st fifing dviions prey do protess onais has proved to be an import mnt

corv pet tive adsantage tor PrCiviti

oui original business provides special

ized permanent acenient services Its 2011 revenue of $302 million grew

37 percent year to year and was ercent ol the corporate total hi out

star dng growth rellec rapid rebound from unusually deep oh cut3 made

by companies in the mt recessio along with me tigfitening job market for

ixamy specialized positions Lemand toi Robeft Halt Finance Accounting

serv ces remained strong despi recent drift to Iongei recruitment and

p1 mcemer cycln

our higf end ad nistr tive siatfing unit lt revenues lam year

were S7fi million 20 inc ease overt ic piioi yeai
Officeleam rep

is sented percent of coinpanywide ievcnuc ri 2011
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oportid 2011 rovenur of $428 nilnon which

12 percent of the companywkle totaL Its percent inc eae in revor io

from the pnor year represents the fastest growt of at of our to ilporay id

consulting staffing units Os dive on as benefited fir ci ongoing di try

innovation that is fueling hii ing among srnat ci wise come mica on

core client base As the apid pace of technologs al innovation onf nnrw

all oiyipan es but especially small aiir midsize Ti ma race struggle to find

experionerd people who can help thea acquiie and manage these tech

nologies lechne ogy staffing remains cii mpoitant lu ore giovvth vehk Ic

Raced Half ann we aie committee to expand rig our piesen in me cid

2011 were $1 Ilion up 26 percent horn Or prior year Eighty ix per

cent of he total caine fron tempera staffing actit its whs ne ised

20 pi en for the yea The other ercerit mva predm cc err

lionel permanent placement business which rew 31 peicent Lao at in

non business owed year end partici lar rrii ma nt Iaeem it

at economic conditions seftened in of tI uni peai tJn arid Le

where overseas Although our United Kingdom per atio is we attect

impact was moderated our limited pr macncr in wt hit on itrics

Our business F3elgium Cermany and lien held up we ani iii mit

America Canada remained strong At yearn rid we operated 104 ion UT

staffing branches in tO countries

Protiv ti had 201 revei iues of $424 million ep ci entin 11 per th

corporate total otiviti revenues were 10 percent higher ian in prior ye ii

activitics accounted for 74 pci cor of the toOl arid wen pe nt

from 2110 Phe otl icr 26 percent of the unit evenue can in ii it ii iational

markets where growth wan slowei at percent

Protivitis operatng income in 11 mprovod to $t iii lion comp ii ci

year earlier loss of 11 Ilmon The riat majority of the profit nprover en

came in the United States whore combination of an wproved consultant

util zation rate arid healthi mi pricir environment ron ibuted Of ibi

otivit serves irt clients thro igh netwoi more iii Ion ati in

cc untries

Protivili will soon mark its 10th ani mivert aC ai id during hat tmrr

olved in important ways ice domi iated ancc won ielaff
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the barbanemOxley Act th units revenue toda is much more

diversified In addit yr its foundation practice in interna audt and ntornol

control related services it affers business and risk consulting sewices

or as such as finance tech ogy compliance operations itigation and

retructuring

More recently Piotivitis moat sign ficant growth areas have been ifl IT

ielated so vices and consulting sewices to the Inane al seivices industry

Protiviti II ct vities havc extended into IT sec unty and privacy aplica

ficri n2roi and iT nftastrectui managemen among others In mcont

oars Protiviu ha also established an impodait presence sewing the

financial sewices industiy The recent round of financial regulatory oversight

that was triggered the global financial ci isa has created oppoftunities

to am ist clients comply ng with new rules and regulations now jus be

jinning to emerge Protia deep and expanding industry knowledge has

poationed the firm wet to povide its clients with solutions to the challenges

these evolving trends often present

irma tu stions rotiviu ano our staffing unims ham roe unique acility to

collobo ate to orovide blended sewice model when it can benefit client

Jnder this approach we combi ie Protivitis consuiting expertise with skilled

interim piofessionals from our staffing divisions to deliver frill range of con

ulting and staffing seivices at competitive prices

As 2012 progressrs he globI economic outlook remoins mixed with pros

Neets for improving usiw ss condtons tai iparcd somewhat uncee

ainty in select oversea cmi kets We are realistic about this uncertainty but

we also feel we are well positioned to capitalize on ft growth opportunities

before us

fheie evidence of change taking place in the way businesses think

shout staffing heir operations hat is promot nq wide adoption of fIr xihle

staffing models including tha rise of temporary arid project professic nals

We sense that change in ou business and we see it independent re

orch or exasiple when employers polled ii
mid 2011 report by the

McKinsey Global Institute wore asked how thei workforces will change in

the next five years 58 percent said they will Isie more tempoiary and part

workr ra The flexibiiitv of variable ost lahoi prey des advantage to
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compan that seek greater ontrol over their hr man macu eec br dgets and

appreciate having access to skilled talent when and to as lonq as they

that talent

We see giowth oppodunides not only our nransfay ace untin end

finance staffing bu ness hut also our other oecialty ai can logO

ativo and administrative staffing We have idented the IT stathng eector as

pnrne oppodunity to drive future gi owth In the so the am of the

affing nai ket is estimated to he thee to ton nec the eve of tI acre in

and finance st ffi murket rOOidli
ig

to industi reseorcl

Demographic tiends also be neft Robed lalf While rriany baby bourne ra

have delayed ietirement income or quality of Ii reaso is ovei th longer

term eoreipanies will inevitably taco ens of these experien ad ak rs

these firms II need assistance findii replex emei ffs In the no ntime

Robert Halt is benefiting tom boemers who remaininq in tho orkfoice

These gUy killed and experienced ob candidates make up ab em rary

vvorkers and consultants and companies welcoc their expertise for critical

initiatives

We alco believe financial reform legislation domestically arid abroad wil

vide business for our staffing and consulting divisions arid to Prot viti in the

coming year

Our ac hievements th ye er would not have been possible witho the ta ant

deUce tion and passion of our people We crc confident iii the cbilities of

experienced otesionals around the world

We would also like to thank the members of our ooard of die ctors for their

support and etrategic counsel In part eular we vvnt to acknowledge the

wise advice and constant encouragei cent offered by longtim cc me

ber dward Gibbons who passed away in Novere he of last year

As always our gratitude extends to you our etc khoiders for youi cent

ued confidence and support

Renpe ettully submitted

farold Messmer Jr Keith Waddell

Oh Simon and Vice aiman Preedent

lire xe utive Officer irid Oh of nat cial Il/car

Marcf 92012 March 012
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PART

Item Business

Robert Half International Inc the Company provides specialized staffing and risk consulting services

through such divisions as Accountemps Robert Half Finance Accounting Office Team Robert Half

Technology Robert Half Management Resources Robert Half Legal The Creative Group and Protiviti

The Company through its Accountemps Robert Haf Finance Accounting and Robert Half Management

Resources divisions is the worlds largest specialized provider of temporary full-time and project professionals

in the fields of accounting and finance OfficeTeam specializes in highly skilled temporary administrative support

personnel Robert Half Technology provides information technology professionals Robert Half Legal provides

temporary project and full-time staffing of attorneys and specialized support personnel within law firms and

corporate legal departments The Creative Group provides project staffing in the advertising marketing and web

design fields Protiviti which began operations in 2002 is global business consulting and internal audit firm

Protiviti which primarily employs professionals specializing in risk advisory and transactional services is

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

The Companys business was originally founded in 1948 Prior to 1986 the Company was primarily

franchisor under the names Accountemps and Robert Haf now called Robert Haif Finance Accounting of

offices providing temporary and full-time professionals in the fields of accounting and finance Beginning in 1986

the Company and its current management embarked on strategy of acquiring franchised locations All of the

franchises have been acquired The Company believes that direct ownership of offices allows it to better monitor

and protect the image of its tradenames promotes more consistent and higher level of quality and service

throughout its network of offices and improves profitability by centralizing many of its administrative functions

Since 1986 the Company has significantly expanded operations at many of the acquired locations opened many

new locations and acquired other local or regional providers of specialized temporary service personnel The

Company has also expanded the scope of its services by launching the new product lines OfficeTeam Robert Haif

Technology Robert Haf Management Resources Robert Half Legal and The Creative Group

In 2002 the Company hired more than 700 professionals who had been affiliated with the internal audit and

business and technology risk consulting practice of Arthur Andersen LLP including more than 50 individuals who

had been partners of Andersen These professionals formed the base of the Companys Protiviti Inc subsidiary

Protiviti has enabled the Company to enter the market for business consulting and internal audit services which

market the Company believes offers synergies with its traditional lines of business

Accountemps

The Accountemps temporary services division offers customers reliable and economical means of dealing

with uneven or peak work loads for accounting tax and finance personnel caused by such predictable events as

vacations taking inventories tax work month-end activities and special projects and such unpredictable events

as illness and emergencies Businesses view the use of temporary employees as means of controlling personnel

costs and converting such costs from fixed to variable The cost and inconvenience to clients of hiring and firing

regular employees are eliminated by the use of Accountemps temporaries The temporary workers are employees

of Accountemps and are paid by Accountemps The customer pays fixed rate only for hours worked

Accountemps clients may fill their regular employment needs by using an Accountemps employee on trial

basis and if so desired converting the temporary position to regular position The client typically pays

one-time fee for such conversions

Office Team

The Companys Office Team division which commenced operations in 1991 places temporary and full-time

office and administrative personnel ranging from word processors to office managers OfficeTeam operates in

much the same fashion as the Accountemps division



Robert Half Finance Accounting

The Companys Robert Half Finance Accounting division specializes in the placement of full-time

accounting financial tax and banking personnel Fees for successful placements are paid only by the employer

and are generally percentage of the new employees annual compensation No fee for placement services is

charged to employment candidates

Robert Half Technology

The Companys Robert Half Technology division which commenced operations in 1994 specializes in

providing information technology contract consultants and placing full-time employees in areas ranging from

multiple platform systems integration to end-user support including specialists in programming networking

systems integration database design and help desk support

Robert Half Legal

Since 1992 the Company has been placing temporary and full-time employees in attorney paralegal legal

administrative and legal secretarial positions through its Robert Haf Legal division The legal professions

requirements the need for confidentiality accuracy and reliability strong drive toward cost-effectiveness and

frequent peak workload periods are similar to the demands of the clients of the Accountemps division

Robert Half Management Resources

The Companys Robert Half Management Resources division which commenced operations in 1997

specializes in providing senior level project professionals in the accounting and finance fields including chief

financial officers controllers and senior financial analysts for such tasks as financial systems conversions

expansion into new markets business process reengineering and post-merger financial consolidation

The Creative Group

The Creative Group division commenced operations in 1999 and serves clients in the areas of advertising

marketing and web design and places project consultants in variety of positions such as creative directors

graphics designers web content developers web designers media buyers and public relations specialists

Protiviti

Protiviti is global business consulting and internal audit firm composed of experts specializing in risk

advisory and transactional services The firm helps clients solve problems in finance and transactions operations

technology litigation governance risk and compliance

Marketing and Recruiting

The Company markets its staffing services to clients as well as employment candidates Local marketing

and recruiting are generally conducted by each office or related group of offices Local advertising directed to

clients and employment candidates consists of radio websites social media job banks and trade shows Direct

marketing through e-mail regular mail and telephone solicitation also constitutes significant portion of the

Companys total advertising National advertising conducted by the Company consists primarily of radio and of

print advertisements in national newspapers magazines and trade journals Additionally the Company has

expanded its use of job boards in all aspects of sales and recruitment Joint marketing arrangements have been

entered into with major software manufacturers and typically provide for development of proprietary skills tests

cooperative advertising joint mailings and similar promotional activities The Company also actively seeks

endorsements and affiliations with professional organizations in the business management office administration



and professional secretarial fields The Company also conducts public relations activities designed to enhance

public recognition of the Company and its services Local employees are encouraged to be active in civic

organizations and industry trade groups

Protiviti markets its business consulting and internal audit services to variety of clients in range of

industries Industry and competency teams conduct targeted marketing efforts both locally and nationally

including print advertising and branded speaking events with support from Protiviti management National

advertising conducted by Protiviti consists primarily of print advertisements in national newspapers magazines

and selected trade journals Protiviti has initiated national direct mail program to share information with clients

on current corporate governance and risk management issues It conducts public relations activities such as press

releases and newsletters designed to enhance recognition for the Protiviti brand establish its expertise in key

issues surrounding its business and promote its services Protiviti plans to expand both the services and value

added content on the Protiviti.com website and increase traffic through targeted Internet advertising Local

employees are encouraged to be active in civic organizations and industry trade groups

The Company and its subsidiaries own many trademarks service marks and tradenames including the

Robert Half Finance Accounting Accountemps OfficeTeam Robert Half Technology Robert Half

Management Resources Robert Haf Legal The Creative Group and Protiviti marks which are registered in

the United States and in number of foreign countries

Organization

Management of the Companys staffing operations is coordinated from its headquarters facilities in Menlo

Park and San Ramon California The Companys headquarters provides support and centralized services to its

offices in the administrative marketing public relations accounting training and legal areas particularly as it

relates to the standardization of the operating procedures of its offices As of December 31 2011 the Company

conducted its staffing services operations through more than 350 offices in 42 states the District of Columbia

and 19 foreign countries Office managers are responsible for most activities of their offices including sales

local advertising and marketing and recruitment

The day-to-day operations of Protiviti are managed by chief executive officer and senior management

team with operational and administrative support provided by individuals located in San Ramon and Menlo Park

California As of December 31 2011 Protiviti had 60 offices in 23 states and 13 foreign countries

Competition

The Companys staffing services face competition in attracting clients as well as skilled specialized

employment candidates The staffing business is highly competitive with number of firms offering services

similar to those provided by the Company on national regional or local basis In many areas the local

companies are the strongest competitors The most significant competitive factors in the staffing business are

price and the reliability of service both of which are often function of the availability and quality of personnel

The Company believes it derives competitive advantage from its long experience with and commitment to the

specialized employment market its national presence and its various marketing activities

Protiviti faces competition in its efforts to attract clients and win proposal presentations The risk consulting

and internal audit businesses are highly competitive In addition the changing regulatory environment is

increasing opportunities for non-attestation audit and risk consulting services The principal competitors of

Protiviti remain the big four accounting firms Significant competitive factors include reputation technology

tools project methodologies price of services and depth of skills of personnel Protiviti believes its competitive

strengths lie in its unique ability to couple the deep skills and proven methodologies of its big four heritage

with the customer focus and attention of smaller organization



Employees

The Company has approximately 11300 full-time employees including approximately 2300 engaged

directly in Protiviti operations In addition the Company placed approximately 188000 temporary employees on

assignments with clients during 2011 Employees placed by the Company on assignment with clients are the

Companys employees for all purposes while they are working on assignments The Company pays the related

costs of employment such as workers compensation insurance state and federal unemployment taxes social

security and certain fringe benefits The Company provides access to voluntary health insurance coverage to

interested temporary employees

Other Information

The Companys current business constitutes three business segments See Note of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statement in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for financial information about the

Companys segments

The Company is not dependent upon single customer or limited number of customers The Companys

staffing services operations are generally more active in the first and fourth quarters of calendar year Protiviti

which has been in operation since May 2002 is generally more active in the third and fourth quarters of

calendar year Order backlog is not material aspect of the Companys staffing services business While backlog

is of greater importance to Protiviti the Company does not believe based upon the length of time of the average

Protiviti engagement that backlog is material aspect of the Protiviti business No material portion of the

Companys business is subject to government contracts

Information about foreign operations is contained in Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

in Item The Company does not have export sales

Available Information

The Companys Internet address is www.rhi.com The Company makes available free of charge through its

website its Annual Reports on Form 10-K proxy statements for its annual meetings of stockholders its

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports as

soon as is reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission Also available on the Companys website are its Corporate Governance Guidelines its Code of

Business Conduct and Ethics and the charters for its Audit Committee Compensation Committee and

Nominating and Governance Committee each of which is available in print to any stockholder who makes

request to Robert Half International Inc 2884 Sand Hill Road Menlo Park CA 94025 Attn Corporate

Secretary The Companys Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is the Code of Ethics required by Item 406 of

Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K The Company intends to satisfy any disclosure

obligations under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding any amendment or waiver relating to its Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics by posting such information on its website

Item 1A Risk Factors

The Companys business prospects are subject to various risks and uncertainties that impact its business

The most important of these risks and uncertainties are as follows

The global economic crisis may continue to harm the Companys business and financial condition The

world economy may continue in prolonged economic downturn characterized by high unemployment limited

availability of credit and decreased consumer and business spending Given the nature of the Companys
business financial results could be significantly harmed should such prolonged downturn occur In the past the

Companys business has suffered during periods of high unemployment as demand for staffing services tends to

significantly decrease during such periods This impact on the Companys business could be further dramatized



given the unprecedented impact it has had and may continue to have on the global labor markets In addition the

impact of the economic crisis could harm the Companys financial condition At December 31 2011 the

Company had approximately $279 million in cash and cash equivalents The Company has historically invested

these amounts in U.S treasuries and government agencies bank deposits corporate debt money market funds

commercial paper and municipal bonds meeting certain criteria Certain of these investments are subject to

general credit liquidity market and interest rate risks These risks associated with the Companys investment

portfolio may negatively impact the Companys financial condition

Any reduction in global economic activity may harm the Companys business The demand for the

Companys services in particular its staffing services is highly dependent upon the state of the economy and

upon the staffing needs of the Companys clients Any variation in the economic condition or unemployment

levels of the U.S or of any of the foreign countries in which the Company does business or in the economic

condition of any region of any of the foregoing or in any specific industry may severely reduce the demand for

the Companys services and thereby significantly decrease the Companys revenues and profits

The Companys business depends on strong reputation and anything that harms its reputation will likely

harm its results As provider of temporary and permanent staffing solutions as well as consultant services the

Companys reputation is dependent upon the performance of the employees it places with its clients and the

services rendered by its consultants If the Companys clients become dissatisfied with the performance of those

employees or consultants or if any of those employees or consultants engage in conduct that is harmful to the

Companys clients the Companys ability to maintain or expand its client base may be harmed

The Company and certain subsidiaries are defendants in several lawsuits alleging various wage and hour

related claims that could cause the Company to incur substantial liabilities The Company and certain

subsidiaries are defendants in several actual or asserted class and representative action lawsuits brought by or on

behalf of the Companys current and former employees alleging violations of federal and state law with respect

to certain wage and hour related matters The various claims made in one or more of such lawsuits include

among other things the misclassification of certain employees as exempt employees under applicable law failure

to comply with wage statement requirements and other related wage and hour violations Such suits seek as

applicable unspecified amounts for unpaid overtime compensation penalties and other damages as well as

attorneys fees It is not possible to predict the outcome of these lawsuits However these lawsuits may consume

substantial amounts of the Companys financial and managerial resources and might result in adverse publicity

regardless of the ultimate outcome of the lawsuits In addition the Company and its subsidiaries may become

subject to similar lawsuits in the same or other jurisdictions An unfavorable outcome with respect to these

lawsuits and any future lawsuits could individually or in the aggregate cause the Company to incur substantial

liabilities that may have material adverse effect upon the Companys business financial condition or results of

operations In addition an unfavorable outcome in one or more of these cases could cause the Company to

change its compensation plans for its employees which could have material adverse effect upon the Companys
business

The Company faces risks in operating internationally The Company depends on operations in

international markets for significant portion of its business These international operations are subject to

number of risks including general political and economic conditions in those foreign countries the burden of

complying with various foreign laws and technical standards and unpredictable changes in foreign regulations

U.S legal requirements governing U.S companies operating in foreign countries legal and cultural differences

in the conduct of business potential adverse tax consequences and difficulty in staffing and managing

international operations In addition the Companys business may be affected by foreign currency exchange

fluctuations In particular the Company is subject to risk in translating its results in foreign currencies into the

U.S dollar If the value of the U.S dollar strengthens relative to other currencies the Companys reported

income from these operations could decrease

The Company may be unable to find sufficient candidates for its staffing business The Companys staffing

services business consists of the placement of individuals seeking employment There can be no assurance that



candidates for employment will continue to seek employment through the Company Candidates generally seek

temporary or regular positions through multiple sources including the Company and its competitors Any

shortage of candidates could materially adversely affect the Company

The Company operates in highly competitive business and may be unable to retain clients or market

share The staffing services business is highly competitive and because it is service business the barriers to

entry are quite low There are many competitors some of which have greater resources than the Company and

new competitors are entering the market all the time In addition long-term contracts form negligible portion of

the Companys revenue Therefore there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to retain clients or

market share in the future Nor can there be any assurance that the Company will in light of competitive

pressures be able to remain profitable or if profitable maintain its current profit margins

The Company may incur potential liability to employees and clients The Companys temporary services

business entails employing individuals on temporary basis and placing such individuals in clients workplaces

The Companys ability to control the workplace environment is limited As the employer of record of its

temporary employees the Company incurs risk of liability to its temporary employees for various workplace

events including claims of physical injury discrimination harassment or failure to protect confidential personal

information While such claims have not historically had material adverse effect upon the Company there can

be no assurance that such claims in the future will not result in adverse publicity or have material adverse effect

upon the Company The Company also incurs risk of liability to its clients resulting from allegations of errors

omissions or theft by its temporary employees or allegations of misuse of client confidential information The

Company maintains insurance with respect to many of such claims While such claims have not historically had

material adverse effect upon the Company there can be no assurance that the Company will continue to be able

to obtain insurance at cost that does not have material adverse effect upon the Company or that such claims

whether by reason of the Company not having insurance or by reason of such claims being outside the scope of

the Companys insurance will not have material adverse effect upon the Company

The Company is dependent on its management personnel and employees and failure to attract and retain

such personnel could harm its business The Company is engaged in the services business As such its success

or failure is highly dependent upon the performance of its management personnel and employees rather than

upon technology or upon tangible assets of which the Company has few There can be no assurance that the

Company will be able to attract and retain the personnel that are essential to its success

The Company business is subject to extensive government regulation and failure to comply with

regulations could harm its business The Companys business is subject to regulation or licensing in many

states and in certain foreign countries While the Company has had no material difficulty complying with

regulations in the past there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue to obtain all

necessary
licenses or approvals or that the cost of compliance will not prove to be material Any inability of the

Company to comply with government regulation or licensing requirements could materially adversely affect the

Company In addition the Companys temporary services business entails employing individuals on temporary

basis and placing such individuals in clients workplaces Increased government regulation of the workplace or of

the employer-employee relationship or judicial or administrative proceedings related to such regulation could

materially adversely affect the Company In addition to the extent that government regulation imposes increased

costs upon the Company such as unemployment insurance taxes there can be no assurance that such costs will

not adversely impact the Companys profit margins

Recent health care reform could increase the costs of the Companys temporary staffing operations The

Company may incur additional costs including without limitation increases in the cost of providing temporary

employees as result of the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 that was signed into law in

March 2010 Such an increase in costs could have material adverse effect on the Companys profit margins or

if the Company increases its charges to clients upon the demand for the Companys services which could

materially reduce revenues



The Companys computer and communications hardware and software systems are vulnerable to damage

and interruption The Companys ability to manage its operations successfully is critical to its success and

largely depends upon the efficient and uninterrupted operation of its computer and communications hardware and

software systems The Companys primary computer systems and operations are vulnerable to damage or

interruption from power outages computer and telecommunications failures computer viruses security

breaches catastrophic events and errors in usage by the Companys employees

Failure to maintain adequate financial and management processes
and controls could lead to errors in the

Company financial reporting Failure to maintain adequate financial and management processes and controls

could lead to errors in the Companys financial reporting If the Companys management is unable to certify the

effectiveness of its internal controls or if its independent registered public accounting firm cannot render an

opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting or if material weaknesses in the

Companys internal controls are identified the Company could be subject to regulatory scrutiny and loss of

public confidence In addition if the Company does not maintain adequate financial and management personnel

processes and controls it may not be able to accurately report its financial performance on timely basis which

could cause its stock price to fall

The demand for the Companys services related to Sarbanes-Oxley or other regulatory compliance may

decline The operations of both the staffing services business and Protiviti include services related to Sarbanes

Oxley and other regulatory compliance There can be no assurance that there will be ongoing demand for these

services

Long-term contracts do not comprise significant portion of the Companys revenue Because long-term

contracts are not significant part of the Companys staffing services business future results cannot be reliably

predicted by considering past trends or extrapolating past results

Protiviti may be unable to attract and retain key personnel Protiviti is services business and is

dependent upon its ability to attract and retain personnel While Protiviti has retained its key personnel to date

there can be no assurance that it will continue to be able to do so

Protiviti operates in highly competitive business and faces competitors who are significantly larger and

have more established reputations Protiviti operates in highly competitive business As with the Companys

staffing services business the barriers to entry are quite low There are many competitors some of which have

greater resources than Protiviti and many of which have been in operation far longer than Protiviti In particular

Protiviti faces competition from the big four accounting firms which have been in operation for considerable

period of time and have established reputations and client bases Because the principal factors upon which

competition is based are reputation technology tools project methodologies price of services and depth of skills

of personnel there can be no assurance that Protiviti will be successful in attracting and retaining clients

Protiviti operations could subject it to liability The business of Protiviti consists of providing business

consulting and internal audit services Liability could be incurred or litigation could be instituted against the

Company or Protiviti for claims related to these activities or to prior transactions or activities There can be no

assurance that such liability or litigation will not have material adverse impact on Protiviti or the Company

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item Properties

The Companys headquarters operations are located in Menlo Park and San Ramon California As of

December 31 2011 placement activities were conducted through more than 350 offices located in the United

States Canada the United Kingdom Belgium Brazil France the Netherlands Germany the Czech Republic

Italy Luxembourg Switzerland Japan China Singapore Australia New Zealand Austria the United Arab



Emirates and Chile As of December 31 2011 Protiviti had 60 offices in the United States Canada Australia

China France Germany Italy the Netherlands Japan Singapore South Korea India the United Kingdom and

Spain All of the offices are leased

Item Legal Proceedings

On September 10 2004 Plaintiff Mark Laffitte on behalf of himself and putative class of salaried

Account Executives and Staffing Managers filed complaint in California Superior Court naming the Company
and three of its wholly owned subsidiaries as Defendants The complaint alleges that salaried Account Executives

and Staffing Managers based in California have been misclassified under California law as exempt employees

and seeks an unspecified amount for unpaid overtime pay alleged to be due to them had they been paid as non-

exempt hourly employees In addition the Plaintiff seeks an unspecified amount for statutory penalties for

alleged violations of the California Labor Code arising from the alleged misclassification of these employees as

exempt employees On September 18 2006 the Court issued an order certifying class with respect to claims for

alleged unpaid overtime pay and related statutory penalties but denied certification with respect to claims relating

to meal periods and rest time breaks The Court has stayed the litigation until March 2012 ruling by the

California Supreme Court in case titled Pellegrino et al Robert Half International Inc which as previously

disclosed the Company does not believe is material pending legal proceeding may have material adverse

bearing on the Companys position in this litigation At this stage of the litigation it is not feasible to predict the

outcome of or range of loss should loss occur from this proceeding and accordingly no amounts have been

provided in the Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the

allegations and the Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the litigation

On February 23 2011 Plaintiff Isabel Apolinario on behalf of herself and putative class of salaried

Account Executives and Staffing Managers filed complaint in California Superior Court naming the Company
and three of its wholly owned subsidiaries as Defendants The complaint alleges that salaried Account Executives

and Staffing Managers based in California have been misclassified under California law as exempt employees

and seeks an unspecified amount for unpaid overtime pay alleged to be due to them had they been paid as non-

exempt hourly employees In addition the Plaintiff seeks an unspecified amount for
statutory penalties for

alleged violations of the California Labor Code arising from the alleged misclassification of these employees as

exempt employees The Court has stayed this case until March 2012 ruling by the California Supreme Court

in the Pellegrino case referenced in the first paragraph of this Item may have material adverse bearing on the

Companys position in this litigation At this stage of the litigation it is not feasible to predict the outcome of or

range
of loss should loss occur from this proceeding and accordingly no amounts have been provided in the

Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the allegations in this

case and the Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the litigation

On September 24 2007 Plaintiff Van Williamson on behalf of himself and putative class of salaried

Account Executives and Staffing Managers filed complaint in California Superior Court naming the Company
and three of its wholly owned subsidiaries as Defendants The complaint alleges that salaried Account Executives

and Staffing Managers based in California were not provided meal periods paid rest periods and accurate

itemized wage statements It seeks one hour of wages for each employee for each meal and rest period missed

during the statutory liability period It also seeks an unspecified amount for statutory penalties for alleged

violations of the California Labor Code arising from the alleged failure to provide the meal and rest periods and

accurate itemized wage statements The allegations in the complaint are substantially similar to the allegations

included in the complaint filed by Mark Laffitte described above This litigation is stayed pending the California

Supreme Courts decision in Brinker Restaurant Corp Superior Court case unrelated to the Company
ruling in the Brinker case and/or the Pellegrino case referenced previously in this Item may have material

adverse bearing on the Companys position in this litigation At this stage of the litigation it is not feasible to

predict the outcome of or range of loss should loss occur from this proceeding and accordingly no amounts

have been provided in the Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to

the allegations and the Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the litigation



On April 23 2010 Plaintiffs David Opalinski and James McCabe on behalf of themselves and putative

class of similarly situated Staffing Managers filed Complaint in the United States District Court for the District

of New Jersey naming the Company and one of its subsidiaries as Defendants The Complaint alleges that

salaried Staffing Managers located throughout the U.S have been misclassified as exempt from the Fair Labor

Standards Acts overtime pay requirements Plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount for unpaid overtime on behalf

of themselves and the class they purport to represent
Plaintiffs also seek an unspecified amount for statutory

penalties attorneys fees and other damages On October 2011 the Court granted the Companys motion to

compel arbitration of the Plaintiffs allegations At this stage it is not feasible to predict the outcome of or

range of loss should loss occur from these allegations and accordingly no amounts have been provided in the

Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the allegations and the

Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the allegations

The Company is involved in number of other lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business While

management does not expect any of these other matters to have material adverse effect on the Companys

business financial condition or results of operations litigation is subject to certain inherent uncertainties

Item Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable



PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Market Price Dividends and Related Matters

The Companys Common Stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
RHI On January 31 2012 there were 3158 holders of record of the Common Stock

Following is list by fiscal quarters of the sales prices of the stock

2011

4th Quarter

3rd Quarter

2nd Quarter

1st Quarter

2010

4th Quarter

3rd Quarter

2nd Quarter

1st Quarter

Sales Prices

High Low

$28.74 $20.15

$30.16 $19.69

$31.83 $25.44

$34.26 $29.09

Sales Prices

High Low

$31.04 $25.05

$26.50 $21.16

$32.25 $22.51

$31.76 $25.86

Cash dividends of 14
per share were declared and paid in each quarter of 2011 Cash dividends of 13 per

share were declared and paid in each quarter of 2010

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total

Number of

Shares

Purchased

October 2011 to October 31 2011

November 2011 to November 30 2011 100000

December 12011 to December31 2011 990453a

Total October 2011 to December 31 2011 1090453

Includes 803965 shares repurchased in connection with employee stock plans whereby Company shares

were tendered by employees for the payment of applicable withholding taxes and/or exercise price

Commencing in October 1997 the Companys Board of Directors has at various times authorized the

repurchase from time to time of the Companys common stock on the open market or in privately

negotiated transactions depending on market conditions Since plan inception total of 88000000 shares

have been authorized for repurchase of which 81914647 have been repurchased as of December 31 2011

The remainder of the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Part III Item 12 of

this Form 10-K

Average
Price Paid

per Share

$24.11

$28.03

Total Maximum
Number of Number of

Shares Shares that May
Purchased Yet Be

as Part of Purchased

Publicly Under Publicly

Announced Announced

Plans Plans

6371841

100000 6271841

186488 6085353

286488
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares through December 31 2011 the cumulative total return of the Companys

Common Stock an index of certain publicly traded employment services companies and the SP 500 The

graph assumes the investment of $100 at the beginning of the period depicted in the chart and reinvestment of all

dividends The information presented in the graph was obtained by the Company from outside sources it

considers to be reliable but has not been independently verified by the Company

$150

This index represents the cumulative total return of the Company and the following corporations

providing temporary or permanent employment services CDI Corp Kelly Services Inc

ManpowerGroup and SFN Group Inc./Randstad Holdings NV Effective September 2011 SFN

Group Inc was acquired by Netherlands-based Randstad Holdings NV Accordingly this index reflects

the performance of SFN Group prior to such acquisition and the performance of Randstad Holdings

thereafter

Robert Half International Inc

SP 500 Index

Peer Groupa

$100

$50

$0

12/31/2006 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011
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Item Selected Financial Data

The selected five-year financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with the information

contained in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

and the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto contained in Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data

Years Ended December 31

Net Income Per Share

Basic

Diluted

Shares

Basic

Diluted

Cash Dividends Declared Per Share

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands except per share amounts

1.05 .45 .24 1.60 1.81

1.04 .44 .24 1.59 1.78

140479 142833 145912 151607 159767

141790 144028 146611 152528 162568

.56 .52 .48 .44 .40

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands

$3776976 $3175093 $3036547 $4600554 $4645666

Income Statement Data

Net service revenues

Direct costs of services consisting of

payroll payroll taxes insurance costs and

reimbursable expenses

Gross margin

Selling general and administrative

expenses

Amortization of intangible assets

Interest income net

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income

Net income available to common

stockholders

2287374 1981060 1932868 2686983

1489602 1194033 1103679 1913571

1240184 1079033 1036899 1496839
153 411 1460 2617

951 579 1443 5161

250216 115168 66763 419276

100294 49099 29500 169095

149922 66069 37263 250181

2667838

1977828

1497957

2594

13127

490404

194192

296212

288763147772 63729 35067 242744

December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Balance Sheet Data

Goodwill and other intangible assets net 189473 190006 189728 189382 195143

Total assets $1311836 $1273984 $1283535 $1411850 $1450298

Long-term debt financing 1545 1656 1779 1892 3753

Stockholders equity 800505 834371 899810 983888 984049

2007
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Certain information contained in Managements Discussion and Analysis and in other parts of this report

may be deemed forward-looking statements regarding events and financial trends that may affect the Companys

future operating results or financial positions These statements may be identified by words such as estimate

forecast project plan intend believe expect anticipate or variations or negatives thereof or by

similar or comparable words or phrases Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that

could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the statements These risks and

uncertainties include but are not limited to the following the global financial and economic situation changes

in levels of unemployment and other economic conditions in the United States or foreign countries where the

Company does business or in particular regions or industries reduction in the supply of candidates for

temporary employment or the Companys ability to attract candidates the entry of new competitors into the

marketplace or expansion by existing competitors the ability of the Company to maintain existing client

relationships and attract new clients in the context of changing economic or competitive conditions the impact of

competitive pressures including any change in the demand for the Companys services on the Companys ability

to maintain its margins the possibility of the Company incurring liability for its activities including the activities

of its temporary employees or for events impacting its temporary employees on clients premises the possibility

that adverse publicity could impact the Companys ability to attract and retain clients and candidates the success

of the Company in attracting training and retaining qualified management personnel and other staff employees

the Companys ability to comply with governmental regulations affecting personnel
services businesses in

particular or employer/employee relationships in general whether there will be ongoing demand for Sarbanes

Oxley or other regulatory compliance services the Companys reliance on short-term contracts for significant

percentage of its business litigation relating to prior or current transactions or activities including litigation that

may be disclosed from time to time in the Companys SEC filings the ability of the Company to manage its

international operations and comply with foreign laws and regulations the impact of fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates the possibility that the additional costs the Company will incur as result of health care

reform legislation may have material adverse effect on the Companys profit margins or the demand for the

Companys services the possibility that the additional costs the Company will incur as result of other

government legislation or regulations may have material adverse effect on the Companys profit margins or the

demand for the Companys services the possibility that the Companys computer and communications hardware

and software systems could be damaged or their service interrupted and the possibility that the Company may

fail to maintain adequate financial and management controls and as result suffer errors in its financial reporting

Additionally with respect to Protiviti other risks and uncertainties include the fact that future success will

depend on its ability to retain employees and attract clients there can be no assurance that there will be ongoing

demand for Sarbanes-Oxley or other regulatory compliance services failure to produce projected revenues could

adversely affect financial results and there is the possibility of involvement in litigation relating to prior or

current transactions or activities Because long-term contracts are not significant part of the Companys

business future results cannot be reliably predicted by considering past trends or extrapolating past results

Further information regarding these and other risks and uncertainties is contained in Item 1A Risk Factors

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

As described below the Companys most critical accounting policies and estimates are those that involve

subjective decisions or assessments

Accounts Receivable Allowances The Company maintains allowances for estimated losses resulting from

the inability of its customers to make required payments ii temporary placement sales adjustments and

iii permanent placement candidates not remaining with the client through the 90-day guarantee period

commonly referred to as fall offs The Company establishes these allowances based on its review of

customers credit profiles historical loss statistics and current trends The adequacy of these allowances is

reviewed each reporting period Historically the Companys actual losses and credits have been consistent with

these allowances As percentage
of gross accounts receivable the Companys accounts receivable allowances

totaled 4.4% and 4.8% as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively As of December 31 2011 five
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percentage point deviation in the Companys accounts receivable allowances balance would have resulted in an

increase or decrease in the allowance of $1.1 million Although future results cannot always be predicted by

extrapolating past results management believes that it is reasonably likely that future results will be consistent

with historical trends and experience However if the financial condition of the Companys customers were to

deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments or if unexpected events or significant

future changes in trends were to occur additional allowances may be required

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities In establishing its deferred income tax assets and liabilities the

Company makes judgments and interpretations based on the enacted tax laws and published tax guidance that are

applicable to its operations Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured and recorded using current enacted

tax rates which the Company expects will apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

differences are recovered or settled The likelihood of material change in the Companys expected realization

of these assets is dependent on future taxable income its ability to use foreign tax credit carryforwards and

carrybacks final U.S and foreign tax settlements and the effectiveness of its tax planning in the various relevant

jurisdictions

The Company also evaluates the need for valuation allowances to reduce the deferred tax assets to realizable

amounts Management evaluates all positive and negative evidence and uses judgment regarding past and future

events including operating results to help determine when it is more likely than not that all or some portion of

the deferred tax assets may not be realized When appropriate valuation allowance is recorded against deferred

tax assets to offset future tax benefits that may not be realized Valuation allowances of $36.3 million and

$31.0 million were recorded as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The valuation allowances recorded

related primarily to net operating losses in certain foreign operations If such losses are ultimately utilized to

offset future operating income the Company will recognize tax benefit up to the full amount of the valuation

reserve

While management believes that its judgments and interpretations regarding income taxes are appropriate

significant differences in actual experience may materially affect the future financial results of the Company

Goodwill Impairment The Company assesses the impairment of goodwill annually in the second quarter

or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable in

accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB authoritative guidance The Company
completed its annual goodwill impairment analysis as of June 30 2011 and determined that no adjustment to the

carrying value of goodwill was required There were no events or changes in circumstances during the six

months ended December 31 2011 that caused the Company to perform an interim impairment assessment

FASB authoritative guidance requires two-step approach for determining goodwill impairment In the first

step the Company determines the fair value of each reporting unit utilizing present value technique derived

from discounted cash flow methodology For
purposes of this assessment the Companys reporting units are its

lines of business The fair value of the reporting unit is then compared to its carrying value If the fair value of

the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that unit goodwill is not impaired and

no further testing is performed The second step under the FASB guidance is contingent upon the results of the

first step To the extent reporting units carrying value exceeds its fair value an indication exists that the

reporting units goodwill may be impaired and the Company must perform second more detailed impairment
assessment The second step involves allocating the reporting units fair value to its net assets in order to

determine the implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill as of the assessment date The implied fair value

of the reporting units goodwill is then compared to the carrying amount of goodwill to quantify an impairment

charge as of the assessment date

The Companys reporting units are Accountemps Robert Half Finance Accounting Office Team Robert

Half Technology Robert Haf Management Resources and Protiviti which had goodwill balances at

December 31 2011 of $127.4 million $26.5 million $0.0 million $7.2 million $0.0 million and $28.3 million

14



respectively totaling $189.4 million There were no changes to the Companys reporting units or to the

allocations of goodwill by reporting unit for the year
ended December 31 2011

The goodwill impairment assessment is based upon discounted cash flow analysis The estimate of future

cash flows is based upon among other things discount rate and certain assumptions about expected future

operating performance The discount rate for all reporting units was determined by management based on

estimates of risk free interest rates beta and market risk premiums The discount rate used was compared to the

rate published in various third party research reports which indicated that the rate was within range
of

reasonableness The primary assumptions related to future operating performance include revenue growth rates

and profitability levels In addition the impairment assessment requires that management make certain

judgments in allocating shared assets and liabilities to the balance sheets of the reporting units Solely for

purposes of establishing inputs for the fair value calculations described above related to its annual goodwill

impairment testing the Company made the following assumptions The Company assumed that year-to-date

trends through the date of the last assessment would continue for all reporting units through 2011 using unique

assumptions for each reporting unit In addition the Company applied profitability assumptions consistent with

each reporting units historical trends at various revenue levels and for years
2013 and beyond used 5%

growth factor to calculate the terminal value at the end of ten years for each unit This rate is comparable to the

Companys most recent ten-year annual compound revenue growth rate In its most recent calculation the

Company used 9.5% discount rate which is slightly lower than the 9.6% discount rate used for the Companys

test during the second quarter of 2010

In order to evaluate the sensitivity of the fair value calculations on the goodwill impairment test the

Company applied hypothetical decreases to the fair values of each reporting unit The Company determined that

hypothetical decreases in fair value of at least 70% would be required before any reporting unit would have

carrying value in excess of its fair value

Given the current economic environment and the uncertainties regarding the impact on the Companys

business there can be no assurance that the Companys estimates and assumptions made for purposes of the

Companys goodwill impairment testing will prove to be accurate predictions of the future If the Companys

assumptions regarding forecasted revenue or profitability growth rates of certain reporting units are not achieved

the Company may be required to recognize goodwill impairment charges in future periods It is not possible at

this time to determine if any such future impairment charge would result or if it does whether such charge

would be material

Workers Compensation Except for states which require participation in state-operated insurance funds

the Company retains the economic burden for the first $0.5 million per occurrence in workers compensation

claims Workers compensation includes ongoing healthcare and indemnity coverage for claims and may be paid

over numerous years following the date of injury Claims in excess of $0.5 million are insured Workers

compensation expense includes the insurance premiums for claims in excess of $0.5 million claims

administration fees charged by the Companys workers compensation administrator premiums paid to state-

operated insurance funds and an estimate for the Companys liability for Incurred But Not Reported IBNR
claims and for the ongoing development of existing claims Total workers compensation expense was

$7.9 million $6.6 million and $5.0 million representing 0.30% 0.29% and 0.23% of applicable U.S revenue for

the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The reserves for IBNR claims and for the ongoing development of existing claims in each reporting period

includes estimates The Company has established reserves for workers compensation claims using loss

development rates which are estimated using periodic third party actuarial valuations based upon historical loss

statistics which include the Companys historical frequency and severity of workers compensation claims and

an estimate of future cost trends While management believes that its assumptions and estimates are appropriate

significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect the

Companys future results Based on the Companys results for the
year

ended December 31 2011 five
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percentage point deviation in the Companys estimated loss development rates would have resulted in an increase

or decrease in the reserve of $0.3 million

Stock-based Compensation Under various stock plans officers employees and outside directors have

received or may receive grants of restricted stock stock units stock appreciation rights or options to purchase

common stock

Compensation expense for restricted stock and stock units is generally recognized on straight-line basis

over the vesting period based on the stocks fair market value on the grant date For restricted stock grants issued

with performance conditions compensation expense is recognized over each vesting tranche The Company
recognizes compensation expense for only the portion of restricted stock and stock units that is expected to vest

rather than record forfeitures when they occur If the actual number of forfeitures differs from those estimated by

management additional adjustments to compensation expense may be required in future periods For
purposes

of

calculating stock-based compensation expense for retirement-eligible employees the service period is assumed

to be met on the grant date or retirement-eligible date whichever is later

No stock appreciation rights have been granted under the Companys existing stock plans

The Company determines the fair value of options to purchase common stock using the Black-Scholes

valuation model The Company recognizes expense over the service period for options that are expected to vest

and records adjustments to compensation expense at the end of the service period if actual forfeitures differ from

original estimates The Company has not granted any options to purchase common stock since 2006

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 compensation expense related to stock options was

$0.0 million $0.2 million and $0.8 million respectively For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 compensation expense related to restricted stock and stock units was $50.9 million $56.9 million and

$60.3 million respectively of which $13.3 million $12.2 million and $12.0 million was related to grants made

in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively one-percentage point deviation in the estimated forfeiture rates would

have resulted in $0.5 million $0.6 million and $0.6 million increase or decrease in compensation expense

related to restricted stock and stock units for each year ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Balance Sheet Disclosures In December 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance in regards to the

presentation of netting assets and liabilities as single amount in the statement of financial position to address

the difference between GAAP and international financial reporting standards IFRS This authoritative

guidance is to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 2013 and interim periods

within those annual periods The Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have material effect

on its Financial Statements

Testing Goodwill for Impairment In August 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which is

intended to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment by permitting an entity to first assess qualitative

factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its

carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment

test This authoritative guidance is to be applied prospectively and is effective for fiscal years and interim

periods within those years beginning after December 15 2011 The Company does not expect the adoption of

this guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income In June 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which allows an entity the

option to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other

comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but

consecutive statements This authoritative guidance eliminates the option to present the components of other

comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity This authoritative guidance is
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to be applied retrospectively and is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning

after December 15 2011 Except for presentation requirements the Company does not expect the adoption of

this guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

In December 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance to defer only those changes related to the

presentation of reclassification adjustments The amendments are being made to allow the FASB time to

reconsider whether to present on the face of the financial statements the effects of reclassifications out of

accumulated other comprehensive income on the components of net income and other comprehensive income for

all periods presented This authoritative guidance is to be applied prospectively and is effective during interim

and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 The Company does not expect the adoption of this

guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures In May 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance to

achieve common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in GAAP and IFRS The amendments

explain how to measure fair value and will improve the comparability of fair value measurement presented and

disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP and IFRS This authoritative guidance is to

be applied prospectively and is effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011

The Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

Business Combinations In December 2010 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which specifies that if

public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose revenue and earnings of the

combined entity as though the business combinations that occurred during the current year had occurred as of the

beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only Furthermore this guidance expands the

supplemental pro forma disclosure requirement This authoritative guidance was effective prospectively for

business combinations with an acquisition date on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period

beginning on or after December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance during the three months ended March

31 2011 did not have an impact on the Companys Financial Statements

Revenue RecognitionMultiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements In October 2009 the FASB issued

authoritative guidance which addresses the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable vendors

to account for products or services deliverables separately rather than as combined unit This guidance

establishes selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of deliverable This guidance also

eliminates the residual method of allocation and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the

inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method Furthermore this

guidance significantly expands required disclosures related to vendors multiple-deliverable revenue

arrangements This authoritative guidance was effective for fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 The

adoption of this guidance during the three months ended March 31 2011 did not have an impact on the

Companys Financial Statements

Results of Operations

Demand for the Companys temporary and permanent staffing services and risk consulting and internal

audit services is largely dependent upon general economic and labor market conditions both domestically and

abroad Correspondingly results of operations were positively impacted by improving global economic

conditions during 2011 Because of the inherent difficulty in predicting economic trends and the absence of

material long-term contracts in any of our business units future demand for the Companys services cannot be

forecasted with certainty We expect total Company results to continue to be impacted by general

macroeconomic conditions in 2012

The Companys temporary and permanent staffing services business has more than 350 offices in 42 states

the District of Columbia and 19 foreign countries while Protiviti has 60 offices in 23 states and 13 foreign

countries
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Because fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates have an impact on the Companys results the

Company provides selected growth percentages below on constant-currency basis Constant-currency

percentages are calculated using as-reported amounts which have been retranslated using foreign currency

exchange rates from the prior years comparable period

Years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Revenues The Companys revenues were $3.8 billion for the year ended December 31 2011 up 19%
from $3.2 billion for the year ended December 31 2010 Revenues from foreign operations represented 30% of

total revenues for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to 29% of total revenues for the year ended

December 31 2010 The Company analyzes its revenues for three reportable segments temporary and consultant

staffing permanent placement staffing and risk consulting and internal audit services In 2011 revenues for all

three of the Companys reportable segments increased compared to 2010 Contributing factors for each

reportable segment are discussed below in further detail

Temporary and consultant staffing services revenues were $3.1 billion for the year ended December 31

2011 up 19% from revenues of $2.6 billion for the year ended December 31 2010 On constant-currency basis

temporary and consultant staffing services revenues increased 17% for 2011 compared to 2010 In the United

States 2011 revenues increased 17% compared to 2010 Although unemployment rates in the United States

remained high for the
year ended December 31 2011 the Company experienced an increase in demand for its

temporary and consulting services during the year This is consistent with prior post recession periods where we
believe clients seek to keep their labor costs as variable as possible The Companys revenues from foreign

operations increased 25% for 2011 compared to 2010 On constant-currency basis the Companys revenues

from foreign operations increased 18% for 2011 compared to 2010

Permanent placement revenues were $302 million for the year ended December 31 2011 up 37% from

revenues of $221 million for the year ended December 31 2010 On constant-currency basis permanent

placement revenues increased 33% for 2011 compared to 2010 In the United States 2011 revenues increased

42% compared to 2010 Although unemployment rates in the United States remained high throughout 2011 the

Company experienced an increase in demand for its permanent placement services during this period The

Company believes this demand was bolstered by clients who had previously made deep personnel cuts and

needed to reinstate portion of their workforce as business conditions improved The Companys revenues from

foreign operations increased 31% for 2011 compared to 2010 On constant-currency basis the Companys
revenues from foreign operations increased 25% for 2011 compared to 2010

Risk consulting and internal audit services revenues were $424 million for the year ended December 31

2011 up 10% from revenues of $386 million for the year ended December 31 2010 On constant-currency

basis risk consulting and internal audit services revenues increased 8% for 2011 compared to 2010 In the United

States 2011 revenues increased 12% compared to 2010 The Companys revenues from foreign operations

increased 4% for 2011 compared to 2010 On constant-currency basis the Companys revenues from foreign

operations decreased 1% for 2011 compared to 2010

Gross Margin The Companys gross margin dollars were $1.5 billion for the
year ended December 31

2011 up 25% from $1.2 billion for the year ended December 31 2010 For 2011 compared to 2010 gross

margin dollars for all three of the Companys reportable segments increased Gross margin dollars as

percentage of revenues increased for the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services and risk

consulting and internal audit services segments on year-over-year basis Contributing factors for each

reportable segment are discussed below in further detail

Gross margin dollars from the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services represent revenues

less direct costs of services which consist of payroll payroll taxes and insurance costs for temporary employees

and reimbursable expenses Gross margin dollars for the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services

division were $1.1 billion for the year ended December 31 2011 up 23% from $876 million for the year ended
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December 31 2010 On constant-currency basis temporary and consultant staffing services gross margin

dollars increased 21% for 2011 compared to 2010 As percentage
of revenues gross margin dollars for

temporary and consultant staffing services were 35.2% for 2011 up from 34.1% in 2010

Gross margin dollars from permanent placement staffing services represent revenues less reimbursable

expenses Gross margin dollars for the Companys permanent placement staffing division were $302 million for

the year ended December 31 2011 up 37% from $221 million for the year ended December 31 2010 On

constant-currency basis permanent placement gross margin dollars increased 33% for 2011 compared to 2010

Because reimbursable expenses
for permanent placement staffing services are de minimis the increase in

gross

margin dollars is substantially explained by the increase in revenues previously discussed

Gross margin dollars for risk consulting and internal audit services represent revenues less direct costs of

services which consist primarily of professional staff payroll payroll taxes insurance costs and reimbursable

expenses Gross margin dollars for the Companys risk consulting and internal audit division were $114 million

for the year ended December 31 2011 up 17% from $97 million for the year ended December 31 2010 On

constant-currency basis risk consulting and internal audit gross margin dollars increased 16% for 2011 compared

to 2010 As percentage of revenues gross margin dollars for risk consulting and internal audit services were

26.8% in 2011 up from 25.2% in 2010 The year-over-year margin increase is primarily due to higher staff

utilization levels

Selling General and Administrative Expenses The Companys selling general and administrative

expenses consist primarily of staff compensation advertising depreciation and occupancy costs The Companys

selling general and administrative expenses were $1.2 billion for the year ended December 31 2011 up 15%

from $1.1 billion for the year ended December 31 2010 As percentage of revenues the Companys selling

general and administrative expenses were 32.8% for 2011 down from 34.0% for 2010 For 2011 compared to

2010 selling general and administrative expenses for all three of the Companys reportable segments increased

Selling general and administrative expenses as percentage of revenues decreased for all three of the

Companys reportable segments in 2011 compared to 2010 Contributing factors for each reportable segment are

discussed below in further detail

Selling general and administrative expenses for the Companys temporary
and consultant staffing services

division were $865 million for the year ended December 31 2011 up 13% from $767 million for the year ended

December 31 2010 As percentage of revenues selling general and administrative expenses for temporary and

consultant staffing services were 28.3% in 2011 down from 29.9% in 2010 For 2011 compared to 2010

improved leverage in selling general and administrative expenses drove the overall decrease as percentage of

revenues

Selling general and administrative expenses for the Companys permanent placement staffing division were

$267 million for the year ended December 31 2011 up 31% from $204 million for the
year

ended December 31

2010 As percentage of revenues selling general and administrative expenses for permanent placement staffing

services were 88.2% in 2011 down from 92.0% in 2010 For 2011 compared to 2010 the decreases as

percentage of revenues for variable and fixed overhead were partially offset by increases as percentage of

revenues for field compensation

Selling general and administrative expenses
for the Companys risk consulting and internal audit services

division were $109 million for the year ended December 31 2011 up slightly from $108 million for the year

ended December 31 2010 As percentage of revenues selling general and administrative expenses
for risk

consulting and internal audit services were 25.6% in 2011 down from 28.1% in 2010 For 2011 compared to

2010 improved leverage in selling general and administrative expenses drove the overall decrease as

percentage of revenues

Operating Income The Companys total operating income was $249 million or 6.6% of revenues for the

year ended December 31 2011 up 117% from $115 million or 3.6% of revenues for the year
ended
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December 31 2010 For the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services division operating income

was $209 million or 6.9% of applicable revenues up 93% from $108 million or 4.2% of applicable revenues in

2010 For the Companys permanent placement staffing division operating income was $35 million or 11.7% of

applicable revenues up 102% from operating income of $18 million or 7.9% of applicable revenues in 2010

For the Companys risk consulting and internal audit services division operating income was $5 million or 1.2%

of applicable revenues up 145% from operating loss of $11 million or negative 2.8% of applicable revenues in

2010

Provision for income taxes The provision for income taxes was 40% and 43% for the
years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The 2011 decrease is due to proportionately lower foreign taxes on

overall higher earnings and the diminishing impact of permanent non-deductible tax items which became

increasingly less significant relative to the Companys improved financial results

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Revenues The Companys revenues were $3.2 billion for the year ended December 31 2010 up 5% from

$3.0 billion for the year ended December 31 2009 Revenues from foreign operations represented 29% of total

revenues for both the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 The Company analyzes its revenues for three

reportable segments temporary and consultant staffing permanent placement staffing and risk consulting and

internal audit services In 2010 revenues for all three of the Companys reportable segments were up compared

to 2009 Contributing factors for each reportable segment are discussed below in further detail

Temporary and consultant staffing services revenues were $2.6 billion for the year ended December 31

2010 up 4% from revenues of $2.5 billion for the year ended December 31 2009 On constant-currency basis

temporary and consultant staffing services revenues increased 3% for 2010 compared to 2009 In the United

States 2010 revenues increased 4% compared to 2009 Although unemployment rates in the United States

remained high for the year ended December 31 2010 the Company experienced an increase in demand for its

temporary and consulting services during the year This is consistent with prior post recession periods where we

believe clients seek to keep their labor costs as variable as possible The Companys revenues from foreign

operations increased 4% for 2010 compared to 2009 On constant-currency basis the Companys revenues

from foreign operations increased 2% for 2010 compared to 2009

Permanent placement revenues were $221 million for the year ended December 31 2010 up 22% from

revenues of $182 million for the year ended December 31 2009 On constant-currency basis permanent

placement revenues increased 19% for 2010 compared to 2009 In the United States 2010 revenues increased

22% compared to 2009 Although unemployment rates in the United States remained high throughout 2010 the

Company experienced an increase in demand for its permanent placement services during this period The

Company believes this demand was bolstered by clients who had previously made deep personnel cuts and

needed to reinstate portion of their workforce at the first sign of improving business conditions The

Companys revenues from foreign operations increased 22% for 2010 compared to 2009 On constant-currency

basis the Companys revenues from foreign operations increased 17% for 2010 compared to 2009

Risk consulting and internal audit services revenues were $386 million for the year ended December 31

2010 up 1% from revenues of $384 million for the year ended December 31 2009 On constant-currency basis

risk consulting and internal audit services revenues remained flat for 2010 compared to 2009 In the United

States 2010 revenues increased 3% compared to 2009 The Companys revenues from foreign operations

decreased 5% for 2010 compared to 2009 On constant-currency basis the Companys revenues from foreign

operations decreased 7% for 2010 compared to 2009

Gross Margin The Companys gross margin dollars were $1.2 billion for the year ended December 31

2010 up 8% from $1.1 billion for the year ended December 31 2009 For 2010 compared to 2009 gross margin

dollars for all three of the Companys reportable segments increased Gross margin dollars as percentage of
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revenues increased for the Companys risk consulting and internal audit services segment and remained flat for

the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services segment on year-over-year
basis Contributing

factors for each reportable segment are discussed below in further detail

Gross margin dollars from the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services represent revenues

less direct costs of services which consist of payroll payroll taxes and insurance costs for temporary employees

and reimbursable expenses Gross margin dollars for the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services

division were $876 million for the year
ended December 31 2010 up 4% from $842 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 On constant-currency basis temporary and consultant staffing services gross margin

dollars increased 3% for 2010 compared to 2009 As percentage of revenues gross margin dollars for

temporary and consultant staffing services were 34.1% for 2010 and 2009

Gross margin dollars from permanent placement staffing services represent revenues less reimbursable

expenses Gross margin dollars for the Companys permanent placement staffing division were $221 million for

the year ended December 31 2010 up 22% from $182 million for the year ended December 31 2009 On

constant-currency basis permanent placement gross margin dollars increased 20% for 2010 compared to 2009

Because reimbursable expenses
for permanent placement staffing services are de minimis the increase in gross

margin dollars is substantially explained by the increase in revenues previously discussed

Gross margin dollars for risk consulting and internal audit services represent revenues less direct costs of

services which consist primarily of professional staff payroll payroll taxes insurance costs and reimbursable

expenses Gross margin dollars for the Companys risk consulting and internal audit division were $97 million

for the year
ended December 31 2010 up 22% from $80 million for the year ended December 31 2009 On

constant-currency basis risk consulting and internal audit gross margin dollars increased 21% for 2010 compared

to 2009 As percentage of revenues gross margin dollars for risk consulting and internal audit services were

25.2% in 2010 up from 20.8% in 2009 The year-over-year margin increase is primarily due to higher staff

utilization levels and lower compensation costs

Selling General and Administrative Expenses The Companys selling general and administrative

expenses consist primarily of staff compensation advertising depreciation and occupancy costs The Companys

selling general and administrative expenses were $1.1 billion for the year ended December 31 2010 up 4%

from $1.0 billion for the year ended December 31 2009 As percentage of revenues the Companys selling

general and administrative expenses were 34.0% for 2010 down from 34.1% for 2009 For 2010 compared to

2009 selling general and administrative expenses increased for the Companys temporary and consultant

staffing services and permanent placement services segments and decreased for the Companys risk consulting

and internal audit services segment Selling general and administrative expenses as percentage of revenues

increased slightly for the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services segment and decreased for the

Companys permanent placement staffing services and risk consulting and internal audit services segments in

2010 compared to 2009 Contributing factors for each reportable segment are discussed below in further detail

Selling general and administrative expenses for the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services

division were $767 million for the year ended December 31 2010 up 4% from $738 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 As percentage of revenues selling general and administrative
expenses

for temporary and

consultant staffing services were 29.9% in 2010 up from 29.8% in 2009 For 2010 compared to 2009 slight

increase as percentage
of revenues for variable overhead was partially offset by decrease as percentage of

revenues for fixed overhead

Selling general and administrative expenses
for the Companys permanent placement staffing division were

$204 million for the year ended December 31 2010 up 8% from $189 million for the year ended December 31

2009 As percentage of revenues selling general and administrative
expenses

for permanent placement staffing

services were 92.0% in 2010 down from 103.7% in 2009 For 2010 compared to 2009 improved leverage in

selling general and administrative expenses drove the overall decrease as percentage of revenues
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Selling general and administrative expenses for the Companys risk consulting and internal audit services

division were $108 million for the year ended December 31 2010 down 2% from $111 million for the year

ended December 31 2009 As percentage of revenues selling general and administrative
expenses for risk

consulting and internal audit services were 28.1% in 2010 down from 28.9% in 2009 For 2010 compared to

2009 decrease as percentage of revenues for fixed overhead was partially offset by an increase as

percentage of revenues for variable overhead

Operating Income The Companys total operating income was $115 million or 3.6% of revenues for the

year ended December 31 2010 up 72% from $67 million or 2.2% of revenues for the year ended December 31
2009 For the Companys temporary and consultant staffing services division operating income was

$108 million or 4.2% of applicable revenues up 4% from $105 million or 4.2% of applicable revenues in 2009

For the Companys permanent placement staffing division operating income was $18 million or 7.9% of

applicable revenues up 351% from operating loss of $7 million or negative 3.8% of applicable revenues in

2009 For the Companys risk consulting and internal audit services division operating loss was $11 million or

negative 2.8% of applicable revenues up 64% from an operating loss of $31 million or negative 8.0% of

applicable revenues in 2009

Provision for income taxes The provision for income taxes was 43% and 44% for the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The 2010 decrease is due to increased state income tax credits the

Company claimed in 2010 and the diminishing impact of permanent non-deductible tax items which became

increasingly less significant relative to the Companys improved financial results

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The change in the Companys liquidity during the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 is

primarily the net effect of funds generated by operations and the funds used for capital expenditures repurchases

of common stock and payment of dividends

Cash and cash equivalents were $279 million $315 million and $366 million at December 31 2011 2010

and 2009 respectively Operating activities provided $256 million during the year ended December 31 2011

partially offset by $63 million and $226 million of net cash used in investing activities and financing activities

respectively Operating activities provided $176 million during the year ended December 31 2010 partially

offset by $39 million and $188 million of net cash used in investing activities and financing activities

respectively Operating activities provided $240 million during the year ended December 31 2009 offset by

$46 million and $192 million of net cash used in investing activities and financing activities respectively

Operating activitiesNet cash provided by operating activities for the
year ended December 31 2011 was

composed of net income of $150 million adjusted for non-cash items of $122 million and net cash used by

changes in working capital of $16 million Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended

December 31 2010 was composed of net income of $66 million adjusted for non-cash items of $122 million

and net cash used in changes in working capital of $12 million Net cash provided by operating activities for the

year ended December 31 2009 was composed of net income of $37 million adjusted for non-cash items of

$127 million and net cash provided by changes in working capital of $76 million

Investing activitiesCash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31 2011 was

$63 million This was primarily composed of capital expenditures of $57 million and deposits to trusts for

employee benefits and retirement plans of $7 million Cash used in investing activities for the year ended

December 31 2010 was $39 million This was primarily composed of capital expenditures of $35 million and

deposits to trusts for employee benefits and retirement plans of $3 million Cash used in investing activities for

the year ended December 31 2009 was $46 million This was primarily composed of capital expenditures of $41

million and deposits to trusts for employee benefits and retirement plans of $5 million
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Financing activitiesCash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2011 was

$226 million This included repurchases of $168 million in common stock and $80 million in cash dividends to

stockholders offset by proceeds of $18 million from exercises of stock options and the excess tax benefits from

stock-based compensation of $4 million Cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2010

was $188 million This included repurchases of $155 million in common stock and $77 million in cash dividends

to stockholders offset by proceeds of $38 million from exercises of stock options and the excess tax benefits

from stock-based compensation of $6 million Cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31

2009 was $192 million This included repurchases of $150 million in common stock $72 million in cash

dividends to stockholders offset by proceeds of $25 million from exercises of stock options and the excess tax

benefits from stock-based compensation of $5 million

As of December 31 2011 the Company is authorized to repurchase from time to time up to 6.1 million

additional shares of the Companys common stock on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions

depending on market conditions During the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company

repurchased approximately 5.3 million shares 3.7 million shares and 4.7 million shares of common stock on the

open market for total cost of $142 million $96 million and $110 million respectively Additional stock

repurchases were made in connection with employee stock plans whereby Company shares were tendered by

employees for the payment of exercise price and applicable statutory withholding taxes During the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 such repurchases totaled approximately 1.0 million shares 2.1 million

shares and 1.7 million shares at cost of $29 million $59 million and $40 million respectively Repurchases of

shares have been funded with cash generated from operations

The Companys working capital at December 31 2011 included $279 million in cash and cash equivalents

The Company expects that internally generated cash will be sufficient to support the working capital needs of the

Company the Companys fixed payments dividends and other obligations on both short- and long-term basis

On February 2012 the Company announced quarterly dividend of $.l5 per share to be paid to all

shareholders of record on February 24 2012 The dividend will be paid on March 15 2012

The Companys cash flows generated from operations are also the primary source for funding various

contractual obligations The table below summarizes the Companys major commitments as of December 31

2011 in thousands

Payments due by period

Contractual Obligations 2012 2013 and 2014 2015 and 2016 Thereafter Total

Long-term debt obligations 256 505 505 1261 2527

Operating lease obligations 94715 139740 82101 109982 426538

Purchase obligations 23497 5211 32 28740

Other liabilities 2174 1534 893 10343 14944

Total $120642 $146990 $83531 $121586 $472749

Long-term debt obligations consist of promissory notes and related interest as well as other forms of

indebtedness issued in connection with certain acquisitions and other payment obligations Operating lease

obligations consist of minimum rental commitments for 2012 and thereafter under non-cancelable leases in effect

at December 31 2011 Purchase obligations consist of purchase commitments primarily related to telecom

service agreements software licenses and subscriptions and computer hardware and software maintenance

agreements

The above table does not reflect $11.7 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits which the Company has

accrued for uncertain tax positions in accordance with FASB authoritative guidance As of December 31 2011
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the Company classified $4.9 million of its unrecognized tax benefits as current liability as these amounts are

expected to be resolved in the next twelve months The remaining $6.8 million of unrecognized tax benefits have

been classified as non-current liability as reasonably reliable estimate of the period of future payments if

any could not be determined

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company is exposed to the impact of foreign currency fluctuations The Companys exposure to foreign

currency exchange rates relates primarily to the Companys foreign subsidiaries Exchange rates impact the U.S

dollar value of the Companys reported earnings investments in its foreign subsidiaries and the intercompany

transactions with its foreign subsidiaries

For the year ended December 31 2011 approximately 30% of the Companys revenues were generated

outside of the United States These operations transact business in their functional currency As result

fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies against the U.S dollar have an impact on the Companys reported

results Revenues and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S dollars at the monthly

average exchange rates prevailing during the period Consequently as the value of the U.S dollar changes

relative to the currencies of the Companys non-U.S markets the Companys reported results vary

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates impact the U.S dollar amount of the Companys stockholders

equity The assets and liabilities of the Companys non-U.S subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars at the

exchange rates in effect at period end The resulting translation adjustments are recorded in stockholders equity

as component of accumulated other comprehensive income
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

in thousands except share amounts

December 31

2011 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 279336 315137

Accounts receivable less allowances of $22627 and $21569 493327 423175

Current deferred income taxes 88578 92087
Other current assets 145437 141461

Total current assets 1006678 971860
Goodwill 189423 189787

Other intangible assets net 50 219

Property and equipment net 107972 103651

Other assets 7713 8467

Total assets $1311836 $1273984

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 117596 93690

Accrued payroll costs and retirement obligations 355294 314647

Current portion of notes payable and other indebtedness 111 123

Total current liabilities 473001 408460

Notes payable and other indebtedness less current portion 1545 1656

Other liabilities 36785 29497

Total liabilities 511331 439613

Commitments and Contingencies Note

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred stock $.001 par

value authorized 5000000 shares issued and outstanding

zero shares

Common stock $.001 par
value authorized 260000000 shares issued and

outstanding 142085533 and 146182564 shares 142 146

Capital surplus 759476 787105

Accumulated other comprehensive income 40887 47120
Retained earnings

Total stockholders equity 800505 834371

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $1311836 $1273984

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are an integral part of these financial statements
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ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

in thousands except per share amounts

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net service revenues $3776976 $3175093 $3036547

Direct costs of services consisting of payroll payroll taxes insurance

costs and reimbursable expenses 2287374 1981060 1932868

Gross margin 1489602 1194033 1103679

Selling general and administrative expenses 1240184 1079033 1036899

Amortization of intangible assets 153 411 1460

Interest income net 951 579 1443

Income before income taxes 250216 115168 66763

Provision for income taxes 100294 49099 29500

Net income 149922 66069 37263

Net income available to common stockholders diluted 147772 63729 35067

Net income per share Note

Basic 1.05 .45 .24

Diluted 1.04 .44 .24

Shares

Basic 140479 142833 145912

Diluted 141790 144028 146611

Cash dividends declared per share .56 .52 .48

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are an integral part of these financial statements
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ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

in thousands except per share amounts

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

COMMON STOCKSHARES
Balance at beginning of period 146183 148645 150943

Net issuances of restricted stock 1425 1574 2400

Repurchases of common stock 6328 5762 6398
Exercises of stock options 806 1726 1700

Balance at end of period 142086 146183 148645

COMMON STOCKPAR VALUE
Balance at beginning of period 146 149 151

Net issuances of restricted stock

Repurchases of common stock

Exercises of stock options

Balance at end of period 142 146 149

CAPITAL SURPLUS

Balance at beginning of period 787105 854081 949474

Net issuances of restricted stock at par value

Repurchases of common stockexcess over par value 20641 103153 112549
Cash dividends $.56 per share $52 per share and $.48 per share 81024 63147 72459
Exercises of stock optionsexcess over par value 18308 38353 24949

Stock-based compensation expense 50906 57119 61148

Tax impact of equity incentive plans 4823 3853 3520

Balance at end of period 759476 787105 854081

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Balance at beginning of period 47120 45580 34263

Translation adjustments 6233 1540 11317

Balance at end of period 40887 47120 45580

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at beginning of period

Repurchases of common stockexcess over par value 149922 52301 37263
Cash dividends $52 per share 13768
Net income 149922 66069 37263

Balance at end of period

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income 149922 66069 37263

Translation adjustments 6233 1540 11317

Total comprehensive income 143689 67609 48580

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are an integral part of these financial statements
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ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 149922 66069 37263

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities

Amortization of intangible assets 153 411 1460

Depreciation expense 51262 55547 63806

Stock-based compensation expenserestricted stock and stock

units 50906 56949 60320

Stock-based compensation expensestock options 170 828

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 4211 5814 4751
Provision for deferred income taxes 17156 7370 5752

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable 6673 6795 839
Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects of acquisitions

Increase decrease in accounts receivable 81314 68008 133541

Increase decrease in accounts payable accrued expenses

accrued payroll costs and retirement obligations 64932 41626 52210
Increase decrease in income taxes payable 6368 1490 3830
Change in other assets net of change in other liabilities 5531 13278 1187

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 256316 175883 240153

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for acquisitions net of cash acquired 585
Capital expenditures 56535 35088 41248
Increase in trusts for employee benefits and retirement plans 6867 3424 4719

Net cash flows used in investing activities 63402 39097 45967

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repurchases of common stock 168103 155460 149818
Cash dividends paid 80303 76591 72149

Decrease in notes payable and other indebtedness 91 113 105
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 4211 5814 4751

Proceeds from exercises of stock options 18309 38355 24951

Net cash flows used in financing activities 225977 187995 192370

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2738 552 9222

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 35801 50657 11038

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 315137 365794 354756

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $279336 $315137 $365794

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for

Interest 536 599 441

Income taxes net of refunds 76422 38249 21759

Non-cash items

Stock repurchases awaiting settlement 2466

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations Robert Half International Inc the Company provides specialized staffing and

risk consulting services through such divisions as Accountemps Robert Half Finance Accounting

OfficeTeam Robert Half Technology Robert Half Management Resources Robert HaJ Legal The

Creative Group and Protiviti The Company through its Accountemps Robert Half Finance Accounting

and Robert Haf Management Resources divisions is specialized provider of temporary full-time and project

professionals in the fields of accounting and finance OfficeTeam specializes in highly skilled temporary

administrative support personnel Robert Half Technology provides information technology professionals Robert

Half Legal provides temporary project and full-time staffing of attorneys and specialized support personnel

within law firms and corporate legal departments The Creative Group provides project staffing in the

advertising marketing and web design fields Protiviti provides business consulting and internal audit services

and is wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company Revenues are predominantly derived from specialized staffing

services The Company operates in North America South America Europe Asia and Australia The Company is

Delaware corporation

Basis of Presentation The Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of the Company

are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

GAAP and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC

Principles of Consolidation The Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its

subsidiaries all of which are wholly-owned All intercompany balances have been eliminated

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period As of December 31 2011 such estimates included allowances for

uncollectible accounts receivable workers compensation losses and income and other taxes Management

estimates are also utilized in the Companys goodwill impairment assessment

Revenue Recognition The Company derives its revenues from three segments temporary and consultant

staffing permanent placement staffing and risk consulting and internal audit services Net service revenues as

presented on the Consolidated Statements of Operations represent services rendered to customers less sales

adjustments and allowances Reimbursements including those related to travel and out-of-pocket expenses are

also included in net service revenues and equivalent amounts of reimbursable expenses are included in direct

costs of services The Company records revenue on gross basis as principal versus on net basis as an agent

in the presentation of revenues and expenses The Company has concluded that gross reporting is appropriate

because the Company has the risk of identifying and hiring qualified employees ii has the discretion to

select the employees and establish their price and duties and iii bears the risk for services that are not fully paid

for by customers

Temporary and consultant staffing revenuesTemporary and consultant staffing revenues are recognized

when the services are rendered by the Companys temporary employees Employees placed on temporary

assignment by the Company are the Companys legal employees while they are working on assignments The

Company pays all related costs of employment including workers compensation insurance state and federal

unemployment taxes social security and certain fringe benefits The Company assumes the risk of acceptability

of its employees to its customers

Permanent placement staffing revenuesPermanent placement staffing revenues are recognized when

employment candidates accept offers of permanent employment The Company has substantial history of
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note ASummary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

estimating the effect of permanent placement candidates who do not remain with its clients through the 90-day

guarantee period Allowances are established to estimate these losses Fees to clients are generally calculated as

percentage of the new employees annual compensation No fees for permanent placement services are charged

to employment candidates

Risk consulting and internal audit revenuesRisk consulting and internal audit services are generally

provided on time-and-material basis or fixed-fee basis Revenues earned under time-and-material arrangements

are recognized as services are provided Revenues on fixed-fee arrangements are recognized using proportional

performance method as hours are incurred relative to total estimated hours for the engagement The Company

periodically evaluates the need to provide for any losses on these projects and losses are recognized when it is

probable that loss will be incurred

Costs of Services Direct costs of temporary and consultant staffing services consist of payroll payroll

taxes and insurance costs for the Companys temporary employees as well as reimbursable expenses Direct

costs of permanent placement staffing services consist of reimbursable expenses Risk consulting and internal

audit costs of services include professional staff payroll payroll taxes and insurance costs as well as

reimbursable expenses

Advertising Costs The Company expenses
all advertising costs as incurred Advertising costs for the years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are reflected in the following table in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Advertising Costs $42728 $37941 $32242

Comprehensive Income Comprehensive income includes net income and certain other items that are

recorded directly to Stocltholders Equity The Companys only source of other comprehensive income is foreign

currency translation adjustments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The Company does not have any financial instruments which require

re-measurement to fair value The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable accounts

payable and accrued expenses represent fair value based upon their short-term nature

Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturity at the

date of purchase of three months or less as cash equivalents

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Goodwill and intangible assets primarily consist of the cost of acquired

companies in excess of the fair market value of their net tangible assets at the date of acquisition Identifiable

intangible assets are amortized over their lives typically ranging from two to five years Goodwill is not

amortized but is tested at least annually for impairment The Company completed its annual goodwill

impairment analysis as of June 30 in each of the three years ended December 31 2011 and determined that no

adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill was required

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities In establishing its deferred income tax assets and liabilities the

Company makes judgments and interpretations based on the enacted tax laws and published tax guidance that are

applicable to its operations Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured and recorded using current enacted

tax rates which the Company expects will apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

differences are recovered or settled The likelihood of material change in the Companys expected realization

30



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note ASummary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

of these assets is dependent on future taxable income its ability to use foreign tax credit carryforwards and

carrybacks final U.S and foreign tax settlements and the effectiveness of its tax planning strategies in the

various relevant jurisdictions

Workers Compensation Except for states which require participation in state-operated insurance funds

the Company retains the economic burden for the first $0.5 million
per occurrence in workers compensation

claims Workers compensation includes ongoing healthcare and indemnity coverage
for claims and may be paid

over numerous years following the date of injury Claims in excess of $0.5 million are insured Workers

compensation expense includes the insurance premiums for claims in excess of $0.5 million claims

administration fees charged by the Companys workers compensation administrator premiums paid to state-

operated insurance funds and an estimate for the Companys liability for Incurred But Not Reported IBNR
claims and for the ongoing development of existing claims

The accrual for IBNR claims and for the ongoing development of existing claims in each reporting period

includes estimates The Company has established reserves for workers compensation claims using loss

development rates which are estimated using periodic third party actuarial valuations based upon historical loss

statistics which include the Companys historical frequency and severity of workers compensation claims and

an estimate of future cost trends While management believes that its assumptions and estimates are appropriate

significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect the

Companys future results

Foreign Currency Translation The results of operations of the Companys foreign subsidiaries are

translated at the monthly average exchange rates prevailing during the period The financial position of the

Companys foreign subsidiaries is translated at the current exchange rates at the end of the period and the related

translation adjustments are recorded as component of accumulated other comprehensive income within

Stockholders Equity Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included as component

of selling general and administrative expenses
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and have not been

material for all periods presented

Stock-based Compensation Under various stock plans officers employees and outside directors have

received or may receive grants of restricted stock stock units stock appreciation rights or options to purchase

common stock

Compensation expense for restricted stock and stock units is generally recognized on straight-line basis

over the vesting period based on the stocks fair market value on the grant date For restricted stock grants issued

with performance conditions compensation expense is recognized over each vesting tranche The Company

recognizes compensation expense for only the portion of restricted stock and stock units that is expected to vest

rather than record forfeitures when they occur If the actual number of forfeitures differs from those estimated by

management additional adjustments to compensation expense may be required in future periods For purposes of

calculating stock-based compensation expense for retirement-eligible employees the service period is assumed

to be met on the grant date or retirement-eligible date whichever is later

No stock appreciation rights have been granted under the Companys existing stock plans

The Company determines the fair value of options to purchase common stock using the Black-Scholes

valuation model The Company recognizes expense over the service period for options that are expected to vest

and records adjustments to compensation expense at the end of the service period if actual forfeitures differ from

original estimates The Company has not granted any options to purchase common stock since 2006
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note ASummary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at cost Depreciation expense is computed

using the straight-line method over the following useful lives

Computer hardware to years

Computer software to years

Furniture and equipment years

Leasehold improvements Term of lease

years maximum

Internal-use Software The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred in the development of internal-use

software Amounts capitalized are reported as component of computer software within property and equipment

Internal-use software development costs capitalized for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are

reflected in the following table in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Internal-use software development costs $18133 $10512 $16655

Note BNew Accounting Pronouncements

Balance Sheet Disclosures In December 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued authoritative guidance in regards to the presentation of netting assets and liabilities as single amount in

the statement of financial position to address the difference between GAAP and international financial reporting

standards IFRS This authoritative guidance is to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or

after January 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods The Company does not expect the

adoption of this guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

Testing Goodwill for Impairment In August 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which is

intended to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment by permitting an entity to first assess qualitative

factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its

carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment

test This authoritative guidance is to be applied prospectively and is effective for fiscal years and interim

periods within those years beginning after December 15 2011 The Company does not expect the adoption of

this guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income In June 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which allows an entity the

option to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other

comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but

consecutive statements This authoritative guidance eliminates the option to present the components of other

comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity This authoritative guidance is

to be applied retrospectively and is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning

after December 15 2011 Except for presentation requirements the Company does not expect the adoption of

this guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

In December 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance to defer only those changes related to the

presentation of reclassification adjustments The amendments are being made to allow the FASB time to

reconsider whether to present on the face of the financial statements the effects of reclassifications out of

accumulated other comprehensive income on the components of net income and other comprehensive income for
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note BNew Accounting Pronouncements Continued

all periods presented This authoritative guidance is to be applied prospectively and is effective during interim

and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 The Company does not expect the adoption of this

guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures In May 2011 the FASB issued authoritative guidance to

achieve common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in GAAP and IFRS The amendments

explain how to measure fair value and will improve the comparability of fair value measurement presented and

disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP and IFRS This authoritative guidance is to

be applied prospectively and is effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011

The Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have material effect on its Financial Statements

Business Combinations In December 2010 the FASB issued authoritative guidance which specifies that if

public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose revenue and earnings of the

combined entity as though the business combinations that occurred during the current year
had occurred as of the

beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only Furthermore this guidance expands the

supplemental pro forma disclosure requirement This authoritative guidance was effective prospectively for

business combinations with an acquisition date on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period

beginning on or after December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance during the three months ended

March 31 2011 did not have an impact on the Companys Financial Statements

Revenue RecognitionMultiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements In October 2009 the FASB issued

authoritative guidance which addresses the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable vendors

to account for products or services deliverables separately rather than as combined unit This guidance

establishes selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of deliverable This guidance also

eliminates the residual method of allocation and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the

inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method Furthermore this

guidance significantly expands required disclosures related to vendors multiple-deliverable revenue

arrangements This authoritative guidance was effective for fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 The

adoption of this guidance during the three months ended March 31 2011 did not have an impact on the

Companys Financial Statements

Note COther Current Assets

Other current assets consisted of the following in thousands

December 31

2011 2010

Deposits in trusts for employee benefits and retirement plans 87646 82335

Other 57791 59126

$145437 $141461
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note DGoodwill

The following table sets forth the activity in goodwill from December 31 2009 through December 31 2011

in thousands

Goodwill

Balance as of December 31 2009 $189336

Acquisitions 271

Translation adjustments 180

Balance as of December 31 2010 189787

Translation adjustments 364

Balance as of December 31 2011 $189423

Note EProperty and Equipment Net

Property and equipment consisted of the following in thousands

December 31

2011 2010

Computer hardware 122619 115518

Computer software 249843 232657

Furniture and equipment 108917 115730

Leasehold improvements 113972 116241

Other 15143 14716

Property and equipment cost 610494 594862

Accumulated depreciation 502522 491211

Property and equipment net 107972 $103651

Note FAccrued Payroll Costs and Retirement Obligations

Accrued payroll costs and retirement obligations consisted of the following in thousands

Payroll and benefits

Employee retirement obligations

Workers compensation

Payroll taxes

Included in employee retirement obligations is the following in thousands

December 31

2011 2010

$181035 $153329

87031 80716

24217 24136

63011 56466

$355294 $314647

December 31

2011 2010

Deferred compensation plan and other benefits related to the

Companys Chief Executive Officer $71603 $67891
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note CNotes Payable and Other Indebtedness

The Company issued promissory notes as well as other forms of indebtedness in connection with certain

acquisitions and other payment obligations These are due in varying installments carry varying interest rates and

in aggregate amounted to $1.7 million at December 31 2011 and $1.8 million at December 31 2010 At

December 31 2011 $1.7 million of the notes were collateralized by standby letter of credit The following table

shows the schedule of maturities for notes payable and other indebtedness at December 31 2011 in thousands

2012 111

2013 117

2014 128

2015 140

2016 153

Thereafter 1007

$1656

At December 31 2011 the notes carried fixed rates and the weighted average
interest rate for the above was

9.0% for each of the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

The Company has an uncommitted letter of credit facility the facility of up to $35.0 million which is

available to cover the issuance of debt support standby letters of credit The Company had used $22.0 million in

debt support standby letters of credit as of December 31 2011 and 2010 Of the debt support standby letters of

credit outstanding $20.2 million as of December 31 2011 and 2010 satisfies workers compensation insurers

collateral requirements There is service fee of 1.25% on the used portion of the facility The facility is subject

to certain financial covenants and expires on August 31 2012 The Company intends to renew this facility prior

to its August 31 2012 expiration

Note HIncome Taxes

The provision benefit for income taxes for the years
ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 consisted

of the following in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Current

Federal 48068 $18085 $14571

State 11969 7412 4008

Foreign 23101 16232 5169

Deferred

Federal and state 15117 3654 10412

Foreign 2039 3716 4660

$100294 $49099 $29500

Income before the provision for income taxes for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

consisted of the following in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Domestic $202210 88065 $66756

Foreign 48006 27103

$250216 $115168 $66763
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note HIncome Taxes Continued

The income taxes shown above varied from the statutory federal income tax rates for these periods as

follows

Federal U.S income tax rate

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit

Tax-free interest income

Non-deductible expenses

Non-U.S income taxed at different rates net of foreign tax

credits

Federal tax credits

Tax impact of uncertain tax positions

Other net

Effective tax rate

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

3.4 2.0 2.0

0.3
1.3 2.7 4.8

2.2 3.4 8.0

1.2 1.3 2.5

0.4 0.2 5.1

0.2 0.6 2.3

40.1% 42.6% 44.2%

2011

514

1142

2076
7448

1709
331

5719

5787

$17156

2010

570

961

4423

4693

951
921

5719
4314

7370

2011

Current deferred income tax assets net 88578

Long-term deferred income tax liabilities net 14377

74201

2009

628

535

5069

6809

9804
1353

5434

4272

5752

The deferred portion of the tax provision benefit consisted of the following in thousands

Years Ended December 31

Amortization of franchise rights

Amortization of other intangibles

Accrued expenses deducted for tax when paid

Capitalized costs for books deducted for tax

Depreciation

Federal impact of unrecognized tax benefits

Foreign tax credit carryforwards

Other net

The deferred income tax amounts included on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position are

composed of the following in thousands

December 31

2010

$92087

1379

$90708

36



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Note HIncome Taxes Continued

The components of the deferred income tax amounts at December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows in

thousands

December 31

2011 2010

Deferred Income Tax Assets

Provision for bad debts 7123 7299

Employee retirement and other benefit obligations 54708 49028

Workers compensation 8526 8284

Deferred compensation 15502 18909

Credits and net operating loss carryforwards 42289 47847

Other 16427 18727

Total deferred income tax assets 144575 150094

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

Amortization of intangible assets 20475 18819
Property and equipment basis differences 8823 3203
Other 4742 6381

Total deferred income tax liabilities 34040 28403
Valuation allowance 36334 30983

Total deferred income tax assets net 74201 90708

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards in number of states The tax benefit of these net

operating losses is $0.2 million These state net operating losses expire in 2013 and later The Company has net

operating loss carryforwards in foreign countries The tax benefit of these net operating losses is $34.2 million

These net operating losses expire in 2014 and later

The Company has not provided deferred income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on $2.2 million and

$2.0 million of undistributed earnings of its non-U.S subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

since the Company intends to reinvest these earnings indefmitely The U.S tax impact upon repatriation net of foreign

tax credits would be zero for the year ended December 31 2011 and 2010

FASB authoritative guidance prescribes recognition threshold and measurement attribute criteria for the

financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return

The literature also provides guidance on derecognition classification interest and penalties accounting in

interim periods disclosure and transition

The following table reconciles the total amounts of
gross unrecognized tax benefits from January 2009 to

December 31 2011 in thousands

December 31

2011 2010 2009

Balance at beginning of period $12505 $13135 $20485

Gross increasestax positions in prior years 564 910 2152

Gross decreasestax positions in prior years 1061 493 6592
Gross increasestax positions in current year 40 64 130

Settlements 111 1111 3040
Lapse of statute of limitations 268

Balance at end of period $11669 $12505 $13135
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Note HIncome Taxes Continued

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would impact the effective tax rate is

$2.7 million $3.5 million and $3.0 million for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Companys continuing practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in

income tax expense The total amount of interest and penalties accrued as of December 31 2011 is $5.3 million

including $0.3 million reduction recorded in income tax expense during the year The total amount of interest

and penalties accrued as of December 31 2010 was $5.7 million including $0.4 million increase recorded in

income tax expense during the year The total amount of interest and penalties accrued as of December 31 2009

was $5.6 million including $2.8 million reduction recorded in income tax expense during the year

The Company believes it is reasonably possible that the settlement of certain tax uncertainties could occur

within the next twelve months accordingly $4.9 million of the unrecognized gross tax benefit has been

classified as current liability as of December 31 2011 This amount primarily represents unrecognized tax

benefits composed of items related to assessed state income tax audits as well as state U.S and Canadian federal

settlement negotiations

The Companys major income tax jurisdictions are the United States and Canada For U.S federal income

tax the Company remains subject to examination for 2002 2003 2008 and subsequent years For major U.S

states with few exceptions the Company remains subject to examination for 2007 and subsequent years For

Canada the Company remains subject to examination for 2002 and subsequent years

Note ICommitments and Contingencies

Rental expense primarily for office premises amounted to $100.6 million $103.6 million and

$107.8 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The approximate minimum

rental commitments for 2012 and thereafter under non-cancelable leases in effect at December 31 2011 were as

follows in thousands

2012 94715

2013 77661

2014 62079

2015 49256

2016 32845

Thereafter 109982

$426538

Additionally as of December 31 2011 the Company had future purchase commitments of approximately

$28 million over the next three years primarily related to telecom service agreements software licenses and

subscriptions and computer hardware and software maintenance agreements

On September 10 2004 Plaintiff Mark Laffitte on behalf of himself and putative class of salaried

Account Executives and Staffing Managers filed complaint in California Superior Court naming the Company
and three of its wholly owned subsidiaries as Defendants The complaint alleges that salaried Account Executives

and Staffing Managers based in California have been misclassified under California law as exempt employees

and seeks an unspecified amount for unpaid overtime pay alleged to be due to them had they been paid as non

exempt hourly employees In addition the Plaintiff seeks an unspecified amount for statutory penalties for

alleged violations of the California Labor Code arising from the alleged misclassification of these employees as

exempt employees On September 18 2006 the Court issued an order certifying class with respect to claims for

alleged unpaid overtime pay and related statutory penalties but denied certification with respect to claims relating
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to meal periods and rest time breaks The Court has stayed the litigation until March 2012 ruling by the

California Supreme Court in case titled Pellegrino et Robert Half International Inc which as previously

disclosed the Company does not believe is material pending legal proceeding may have material adverse

bearing on the Companys position in this litigation At this stage of the litigation it is not feasible to predict the

outcome of or range of loss should loss occur from this proceeding and accordingly no amounts have been

provided in the Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the

allegations and the Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the litigation

On February 23 2011 Plaintiff Isabel Apolinario on behalf of herself and putative class of salaried

Account Executives and Staffing Managers filed complaint in California Superior Court naming the Company

and three of its wholly owned subsidiaries as Defendants The complaint alleges that salaried Account Executives

and Staffing Managers based in California have been misclassified under California law as exempt employees

and seeks an unspecified amount for unpaid overtime pay alleged to be due to them had they been paid as non-

exempt hourly employees In addition the Plaintiff seeks an unspecified amount for statutory penalties for

alleged violations of the California Labor Code arising from the alleged misclassification of these employees as

exempt employees The Court has stayed this case until March 2012 ruling by the California Supreme Court

in the Pellegrino case referenced previously in this Note may have material adverse bearing on the

Companys position in this litigation At this stage of the litigation it is not feasible to predict the outcome of or

range
of loss should loss occur from this proceeding and accordingly no amounts have been provided in the

Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the allegations in this

case and the Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the litigation

On September 24 2007 Plaintiff Van Williamson on behalf of himself and putative class of salaried

Account Executives and Staffing Managers filed complaint in California Superior Court naming the Company

and three of its wholly owned subsidiaries as Defendants The complaint alleges that salaried Account Executives

and Staffing Managers based in California were not provided meal periods paid rest periods and accurate

itemized wage statements It seeks one hour of wages for each employee for each meal and rest period missed

during the statutory liability period It also seeks an unspecified amount for statutory penalties for alleged

violations of the California Labor Code arising from the alleged failure to provide the meal and rest periods and

accurate itemized wage statements The allegations in the complaint are substantially similar to the allegations

included in the complaint filed by Mark Laffitte described above This litigation is stayed pending the California

Supreme Courts decision in Brinker Restaurant Corp Superior Court case unrelated to the Company

ruling in the Brinker case and/or the Pellegrino case referenced previously in this Note may have material

adverse bearing on the Companys position in this litigation At this stage of the litigation it is not feasible to

predict the outcome of or range
of loss should loss occur from this proceeding and accordingly no amounts

have been provided in the Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to

the allegations and the Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the litigation

On April 23 2010 Plaintiffs David Opalinski and James McCabe on behalf of themselves and putative

class of similarly situated Staffing Managers filed Complaint in the United States District Court for the District

of New Jersey naming the Company and one of its subsidiaries as Defendants The Complaint alleges that

salaried Staffing Managers located throughout the U.S have been misclassified as exempt from the Fair Labor

Standards Acts overtime pay requirements Plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount for unpaid overtime on behalf

of themselves and the class they purport to represent Plaintiffs also seek an unspecified amount for statutory

penalties attorneys fees and other damages On October 2011 the Court granted the Companys motion to

compel arbitration of the Plaintiffs allegations At this stage it is not feasible to predict the outcome of or

range of loss should loss occur from these allegations and accordingly no amounts have been provided in the

Companys financial statements The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the allegations and the

Company intends to continue to vigorously defend against the allegations
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The Company is involved in number of other lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business While

management does not expect any of these other matters to have material adverse effect on the Companys
results of operations financial position or cash flows litigation is subject to certain inherent uncertainties

Legal costs associated with the resolution of claims lawsuits and other contingencies are expensed as

incurred

Note JStockholders Equity

Stock Repurchase Program As of December 31 2011 the Company is authorized to repurchase from

time to time up to 6.1 million additional shares of the Companys common stock on the open market or in

privately negotiated transactions depending on market conditions The number and the cost of common stock

shares repurchased during the
years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are reflected in the following

table in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Common stock repurchased in shares 5308 3678 4724

Common stock repurchased $141552 $96296 $110281

Additional stock repurchases were made in connection with employee stock plans whereby Company
shares were tendered by employees for the payment of exercise price and applicable statutory withholding taxes

The number and the cost of employee stock plan repurchases made during the years ended December 31 2011

2010 and 2009 are reflected in the following table in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Employee stock plan repurchased in shares 1020 2084 1674

Employee stock plan repurchased $29017 $59164 $39537

The repurchased shares are held in treasury and are presented as if constructively retired Treasury stock is

accounted for using the cost method Treasury stock activity for each of the three years ended December 31

2011 consisting of stock option exercises and the purchase of shares for the treasury is presented in the

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Cash Dividends The Companys Board of Directors may at their discretion declare and pay dividends

upon the shares of the Companys stock either out of the Companys retained earnings or capital surplus The

cash dividends declared during the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are reflected in the

following table

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Cash dividends declared per share $.56 $.52 $.48

Repurchases of shares and issuances of cash dividends are applied first to the extent of retained earnings and

any remaining amounts are applied to capital surplus As result the Company had no retained earnings as of

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009
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Note KStock Plans

Under various stock plans officers employees and outside directors have received or may receive grants of

restricted stock stock units stock appreciation rights or options to purchase common stock Grants have been

made at the discretion of the Committees of the Board of Directors Grants generally vest over four years Shares

offered under the plan are authorized but unissued shares or treasury shares

Options currently outstanding under the plans have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the

Companys common stock at the date of grant and consist of non-statutory stock options under the Internal

Revenue Code and generally have term of 10 years

Recipients of restricted stock do not pay any cash consideration to the Company for the shares have the

right to vote all shares subject to such grant and for grants made prior to July 28 2009 receive all dividends

with respect to such shares on the dividend payment dates whether or not the shares have vested as long as any

performance condition has been met Restricted stock grants made on or after July 28 2009 contain forfeitable

rights to dividends Dividends for these grants are accrued on the dividend payment dates but are not paid until

the shares vest and dividends accrued for shares that ultimately do not vest are forfeited Recipients of stock

units do not pay any cash consideration for the units do not have the right to vote and do not receive dividends

with respect to such units Compensation expense for restricted stock and stock units is generally recognized on

straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the stocks fair market value on the grant date For restricted

stock grants issued with performance conditions compensation expense is recognized over each vesting tranche

FASB authoritative guidance requires that excess tax benefits be recognized as an addition to capital surplus

and that unrealized tax benefits be recognized as income tax expense unless there are excess tax benefits from

previous equity awards to which it can be offset The Company calculates the amount of eligible excess tax

benefits that are available to offset future tax shortfalls in accordance with the long-form method described in the

FASB authoritative guidance

The Company determines the fair value of options to purchase common stock using the Black-Scholes

valuation model The Company recognizes expense over the service period for options that are expected to vest

and records adjustments to compensation expense at the end of the service period if actual forfeitures differ from

original estimates The Company has not granted any options to purchase common stock since 2006

The Company recognizes compensation expense for only the portion of restricted stock and stock units that

is expected to vest rather than record forfeitures when they occur If the actual number of forfeitures differs from

those estimated by management additional adjustments to compensation expense may be required in future

periods For purposes of calculating stock-based compensation expense for retirement-eligible employees the

service period is assumed to be met on the grant date or retirement-eligible date whichever is later

Stock-based compensation expense consisted of the following in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Stock options
170 828

Restricted stock and stock units 50906 56949 60320

$50906 $57119 $61148
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Total unrecognized compensation cost net of estimated forfeitures consisted of the following in

thousands

December 31

2011 2010 2009

Stock options 218

Restricted stock and stock units 54419 62928 80306

$54419 $62928 $80524

The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over the next four years

The following table reflects activity under all stock plans from December 31 2008 through December 31
2011 and the weighted average exercise prices in thousands except per share amounts

Restricted Stock Plans Stock Option Plans

Weighted
Number of Average Weighted

Shares Grant Date Number of Average Exercise

Units Fair Value Shares Price Per Share

Outstanding December 31 2008 5002 $31.00 9178 $20.98

Granted 2827 $16.36

Exercised 1700 $14.68

Restrictions lapsed 2125 $27.80

Forfeited 335 $25.98 189 $25.42

Outstanding December 31 2009 5369 $24.87 7289 $22.34

Granted 1545 $26.81

Exercised 1726 $22.22

Restrictions lapsed 2722 $28.17

Forfeited 196 $23.48 247 $29.66

Outstanding December 31 2010 3996 $23.44 5316 $22.04

Granted 1402 $32.02

Exercised 806 $22.73

Restrictions lapsed 2389 $25.27

Forfeited 94 $23.09 60 $26.05

Outstanding December 31 2011 2915 $26.08 4450 $21.85

The total pre-tax intrinsic value of stock options exercised and the total fair value of shares vested during the

years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are reflected in the following table in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Total pre-tax intrinsic value of stock options exercised 6429 9567 $15533
Total fair value of shares vested $67076 $79434 $51013
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The following table summarizes information about options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31

2011 in thousands except number of
years

and per share amounts

Options Outstanding and Exercisable

Number

Outstanding Weighted
and Exercisable Average Weighted

as of Remaining Average Aggregate

Range of December 31 Contractual Exercise Intrinsic

Exercise Prices 2011 Life Price Value

$12.22 to $16.94 488 1.04 $15.99 6088

$16.95 to$16.95 1115 0.83 $16.95 12834

$17.O6to$22.85 1161 1.64 $21.53 8040

$22.97 to $33.89 1686 2.27 $27.02 2428

4450 1.61 $21.85 $29390

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on the

Companys closing stock price of $28.46 as of December 31 2011 which would have been received by the

option holders had they exercised their in-the-money options as of that date

At December 31 2011 the total number of available shares to grant under the plans consisting of either

restricted stock stock units stock appreciation rights or options to purchase common stock was approximately

7.4 million All of the 4.5 million options outstanding at December 31 2011 were exercisable with weighted

average exercise price of $21.85

Note hNet Income Per Share

The calculation of net income per share for the three years ended December 31 2011 is reflected in the

following table in thousands except per share amounts

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Basic net income per share

Net income $149922 66069 37263

Income allocated to participating securities 2159 2340 2196

Net income available to common

stockholders $147763 63729 35067

Basic weighted average shares 140479 142833 145912

Basic net income per share 1.05 .45 .24

Diluted net income per share

Net income $149922 66069 37263

Income allocated to participating securities 2150 2340 2196

Net income available to common

stockholders $147772 63729 35067

Basic weighted average shares 140479 142833 145912

Dilutive effect of potential common shares 1311 1195 699

Diluted weighted average shares 141790 144028 146611

Diluted net income per share 1.04 .44 .24
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Potential common shares include the dilutive effect of stock options unvested performance-based restricted

stock restricted stock which contain forfeitable rights to dividends and stock units The weighted average

diluted common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

excludes the effect of 0.5 million 0.8 million and 4.5 million anti-dilutive potential common shares Employee

stock options will have dilutive effect under the treasury method only when the respective periods average

market value of the Companys common stock exceeds the exercise proceeds Under the treasury method

exercise proceeds include the amount the employee must pay for exercising stock options the amount of

compensation cost for future service that the Company has not yet recognized and the amount of tax benefits

that would be recorded in capital surplus if the options were exercised and the stock units and performance-

based restricted stock had vested

Note MBusiness Segments

The Company which aggregates its operating segments based on the nature of services has three reportable

segments temporary and consultant staffing permanent placement staffing and risk consulting and internal audit

services The temporary and consultant segment provides specialized staffing in the accounting and finance

administrative and office information technology legal advertising marketing and web design fields The

permanent placement segment provides full-time personnel in the accounting finance administrative and office

and information technology fields The risk consulting segment provides business and technology risk consulting

and internal audit services

The accounting policies of the segments are set forth in Note ASummary of Significant Accounting

Policies The Company evaluates performance based on income or loss from operations before net interest

income intangible amortization expense and income taxes

The following table provides reconciliation of revenue and operating income loss by reportable segment

to consolidated results in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Net service revenues

Temporary and consultant staffing $3050999 $2568255 $2471132
Permanent placement staffing 302155 221219 181856

Risk consulting and internal audit

services 423822 385619 383559

$3776976 $3175093 $3036547

Operating income loss

Temporary and consultant staffing 209101 108443 104521

Permanent placement staffing 35340 17502 6973
Risk consulting and internal audit

services 4977 10945 30768

249418 115000 66780

Amortization of intangible assets 153 411 1460

Interest income net 951 579 1443

Income before income taxes 250216 115168 66763
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The Company does not report total assets by segment The following tables represent identifiable assets by

business segment in thousands

Accounts receivable

Temporary and consultant staffing

Permanent placement staffing

Risk consulting and internal audit services

Goodwill

Temporary and consultant staffing

Permanent placement staffing

Risk consulting and internal audit services

The Company operates internationally with operations in North America South America Europe Asia and

Australia The following tables represent revenues and long-lived assets by geographic location in thousands

Net service revenues

Domestic

Foreign

Assets long-lived

Domestic

Foreign

December 31

2011 2010 2009

$342122 $296722 $257918

75333 59952 43815

98499 88070 82082

$515954 $444744 $383815

December 31

2011 2010 2009

$134507 $134653 $134780

26545 26568 26579

28371 28566 27977

$189423 $189787 $189336

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

$2655443 $2263316 $2161826

1121533 911777 874721

$3776976 $3175093 $3036547

December 31

2011 2010 2009

87146 86689 101034

20826 16962 23624

107972 103651 124658
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Note NQuarterly Financial Data Unaudited

The following tabulation shows certain quarterly financial data for 2011 and 2010 in thousands except per
share amounts

2011

Net service revenues

Gross margin

Income before income taxes

Net income

Net income available to common stockholders diluted

Basic net income per share

Diluted net income
per share

2010

Net service revenues

Gross margin

Income before income taxes

Net income

Net income available to common stockholders diluted

Basic net income per share

Diluted net income per share

Note 0Subsequent Events

On February 2012 the Company announced the following

Quarterly dividend
per share .15

Declaration date
February 2012

Record date
February 24 2012

Payment date March 15 2012

Quarter

$880869 $937966 $984668 $973473

$338089 $372288 $391903 $387322

44576 61284 72195 72161

26705 36425 44168 42624

26293 35890 43556 42037
.18 .25 .31 .30

.18 .25 .31 .30

Quarter

$737173 $769090 $817258 $851572

$268128 $289858 $309140 $326907

12265 22387 37268 43248

8475 12181 20623 24790

7626 11660 20099 24144
.05 .08 .14 .17

.05 .08 .14 .17
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Robert Half International Inc

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15al
present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Robert Half International Inc and its subsidiaries

at December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 31 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement schedule listed in the index

appearing under Item 15a2 presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein when read

in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion the Company maintained

in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these

financial statements and financial statement schedule for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing in Item 9A Our responsibility is

to express opinions on these financial statements on the financial statement schedule and on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance

with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal

control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other

procedures as we considered
necessary

in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable

basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and iii provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Francisco California

February 16 2012
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures Management including the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer and the Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation

of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report Based upon

that evaluation the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Vice Chainnan and Chief Financial Officer

concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be

disclosed in the reports the Company files and submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized

and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission

and that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the

Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Companys management including its principal executive

and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There have been no changes in the Companys internal

controls over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 3a- 15 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that occurred during the Companys fourth fiscal quarter that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Management is responsible for establishing

and maintaining adequate internal control over fmancial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15f under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011 using criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and concluded that the

Company maintained effective internal control over fmancial reporting as of December 31 2011

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies and procedures may deteriorate

The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 has

been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in

their report which is included herein

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Except as provided below in this Part III the information required by Items 10 through 14 of Part III is

incorporated by reference from Item of this Report and from the registrants Proxy Statement under the

captions Nomination and Election of Directors Beneficial Stock Ownership Compensation Discussion

and Analysis Compensation Tables Corporate Governance The Board and Committees and

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm which Proxy Statement will be mailed to stockholders in

connection with the registrants annual meeting of stockholders which is scheduled to be held in May 2012

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for

to be issued upon Weighted average future issuance under

exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans

outstanding options outstanding options excluding securities

warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders 2473722 $21.35 7353242

Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holdersa 1975882 $22.49

Total 4449604 $21.85 7353242

These plans by their terms expressly prohibited any grants to directors or executive officers All such plans

were terminated in May 2005 and no future grants may be made under such plans The information in the

table reflects shares issuable upon the exercise of options granted before such plans were terminated

Since May 2005 all grants have been made pursuant to the Stock Incentive Plan which was approved by

stockholders in May 2005 and re-approved in May 2008 and May 2011 Such plan authorizes the issuance of

stock options restricted stock stock units and stock appreciation rights to directors executive officers and

employees

Description of Equity Plans Not Approved by Stockholders

All of the following plans were terminated in May 2005 No future grants may be made under any of these

plans

StockPlus Plan The StockPlus Plan authorized the grant of stock options to employees other than

directors and executive officers No option could have term of more than ten years

Stock Option Plan for Field Employees The Stock Option Plan for Field Employees authorized the grant

of stock options to employees or consultants other than directors and executive officers No option could have

term of more than ten years
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are included in Item

of this report

Consolidated statements of financial position at December 31 2011 and 2010

Consolidated statements of operations for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated statements of stockholders equity for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009

Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Notes to consolidated financial statements

Report of independent registered public accounting firm

Selected quarterly financial data for the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 are set forth in

Note NQuarterly Financial Data Unaudited included in Item of this report

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule TIValuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules III IV and have been omitted as they are not applicable

Exhibits

Exhibit

No Exhibit

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2009

3.2 By-Laws incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the fiscal
year

ended December 31 2003

4.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant filed as Exhibit 3.1

10.1 Form of Power of Attorney and Indemnification Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30 2002

10.2 Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Harold Messmer Jr incorporated by

reference to Exhibit l0.c to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31 1985 ii Exhibit 10.2b to Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i

No 33-15171 iii Exhibit 10.2c to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 1987 iv Exhibit 10.2d to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended December 31 1988 Exhibit 28.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 1990 vi Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1991 vii Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30 1993 viii Exhibit

10.7 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1993

ix Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

March 31 1995 Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Annual Report on
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Exhibit

No Exhibit

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1995 xi Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1996 xii Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1997

xiii Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 1998 xiv Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 1999 xv Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q

for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2004 xvi Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30 2008 and xvii Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010

10.3 Amended and Restated Retirement Agreement between Registrant and Harold Messmer Jr

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated

December 2006

10.4 Excise Tax Restoration Agreement as amended and restated incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.6 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30 2008

10.5 Outside Directors Option Plan as amended incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30 2004

10.6 Equity Incentive Plan as amended incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30 2000

10.7 Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to

the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30 2008

10.8 Amended and Restated Severance Agreement dated as of February 2011 between Registrant and

Paul Gentzkow incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31 2010

10.9 Agreement dated as of July 31 1995 between Registrant and Paul Gentzkow incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

September 30 2000

10.10 Form of Amended and Restated Severance Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2010

10.11 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Directors of the Registrant incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.27 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 1989 and ii Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended December 31 1993

10.12 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Executive Officers of Registrant incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

September 30 2000

10.13 Senior Executive Retirement Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 31 2010

10.14 Collateral Assignment of Split Dollar Insurance Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.3 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30

2000 and ii Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2003

10.15 Form of Part-Time Employment Agreement as amended and restated incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March

31 2009

10.16 StockPlus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2002

10.17 Annual Performance Bonus Plan as amended and restated incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2010
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Exhibit

No Exhibit

10.18 Stock Option Plan for Field Employees incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2002

10.19 Equity Incentive PlanForm of Resthcted Stock Agreement incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 21 2004

10.20 Equity Incentive PlanForm of Stock Option Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 21 2004

10.21 Outside Directors Option PlanForm of Stock Option Agreement incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 21 2004

10.22 Summary of Outside Director Cash Remuneration incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2010

10.23 Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2011

10.24 Stock Incentive PlanForm of Restricted Share Agreement for Executive Officers incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 2005

10.25 Stock Incentive PlanForm of Stock Option Agreement for Executive Officers incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 2005

10.26 Stock Incentive PlanForm of Restricted Share Agreement for Outside Directors incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

March 31 2006

10.27 Stock Incentive PlanForm of Stock Option Agreement for Outside Directors incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.6 to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 2005

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms Consent

31.1 Rule 3a- 14a Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 3a- 14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Rule 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

32.2 Rule 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

101.1 Part II Item of this Form 10-K formatted in XBRL

Management contract or compensatory plan
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC

Registrant

Date February 16 2012 By Is KEITH WADDELL

Keith Waddell

Vice Chairman President and

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Date February 16 2012 By Is HAROLD MEssMER JR

Harold Messmer Jr

Chairman of the Board

Chief Executive Officer

and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Date February 16 2012 By Is ANDREW BERwIcK JR

Andrew Berwick Jr Director

Date February 16 2012 By Is BARBARA NovoG1DAc

Barbara Novogradac Director

Date February 16 2012 By Is ROBERT PACE

Robert Pace Director

Date February 16 2012 By Is FREDERIcK RIcHMAN

Frederick Richman Director

Date February 16 2012 By Is KiITH WADDELL

Keith Waddell

Vice Chairman President

Chief Financial Officer and Director

Principal Financial Officer

Date February 16 2012 By Is MICHAEL BucKLEY

Michael Buckley

Executive Vice President and Treasurer

Principal Accounting Officer
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Schedule 11Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

in thousands

Balance at

Beginning of Charged to Translation Balance at

Period Expenses Deductions Adjustments End of Period

Year Ended December 31 2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts

receivable $34217 839 10504 1451 $21423

Deferred tax valuation allowance $14578 7295 1320 607 $21160

Year Ended December 31 2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts

receivable $21423 6795 4491 2158 $21569

Deferred tax valuation allowance $21160 12592 2660 109 $30983

Year Ended December 31 2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts

receivable $21569 6673 4370 1245 $22627

Deferred tax valuation allowance $30983 7745 2308 86 $36334



EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC

Jurisdiction of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation

RH Holding Company Inc California

Benchmark Staffing Inc California

BMK Resources Inc California

Robert Half of California Inc California

Cooperative Resources Inc California

Robert Half Staffing Inc California

Robert Half Temporaries Inc California

Jersey Temporaries Inc Delaware

Protiviti Inc Delaware

Protiviti Holdings Inc Delaware

Protiviti SC Inc Delaware

RH-TM Resources Inc Delaware

Protiviti Government Services Inc Maryland

Penta Advisory Services LLC Maryland

Robert Half Corporation Nevada

Robert Half Nevada Staff Inc Nevada

Robert Half of Pennsylvania Inc Pennsylvania

Protiviti Pty Limited Australia

Robert Half Australia Pty Ltd Australia

Robert Half Austria GmbH Austria

Protiviti BVBA Belgium

Robert Half BVBA Belgium

Robert Half Consulting Services BVBA Belgium

Robert Half Assessoria Em Recursos Humanos Ltda Brazil

Robert Half Trabalho TemporÆrioLtda Brazil

Protiviti EOOD Bulgaria

Robert Half Canada Inc Canada

Robert Half Internacional Empresa De Servicios Transitorios Limitada Chile

Protiviti Shanghai Co Ltd China

Robert Half Human Resources Shanghai Company Limited China

Robert Half Hong Kong Limited China Hong Kong SAR

Protiviti Hong Kong Co Ltd China Hong Kong SAR

Robert Half Czech Republic s.r.o Czech Republic

Protiviti SAS France

Robert Half International France SAS France

Robert Half SAS France



Jurisdiction of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation

Protiviti GmbH Germany

Robert Half Deutschland Beteiligungsgesellschaft GmbH Germany

Robert Half Deutschland GmbH Co KG Germany

Protiviti Consulting Private Limited India

P1 Advisory Private Limited India

Robert Half Ireland Limited Ireland

Protiviti Sr. Italy

Robert Half S.r.l Italy

Protiviti LLC Japan

Robert Half Japan Ltd Japan

Protiviti Yuhan Hoesa Korea

Robert Half Sari Luxembourg

Robert Half Holding Sarl Luxembourg

Protiviti B.V Netherlands

Robert Half International B.V Netherlands

Robert Half Nederland B.V Netherlands

Robert Half New Zealand Limited New Zealand

Protiviti Pte Ltd Singapore

Robert Half International Pte Ltd Singapore

Robert Half International Spain Empresa de Trabajo Temporal S.L Spain

Protiviti Spain S.L Spain

Robert Half S.L Spain

Robert Half GmbH Switzerland

Robert Half International Dubai Ltd United Arab Emirates

Protiviti Limited United Kingdom

Robert Half Holdings Limited United Kingdom

Robert Half Limited United Kingdom



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 Nos 33-

14706 33-32622 33-32623 33-39187 33-39204 33-40795 33-52617 33-56639 33-56641 33-57763 33-

62138 33-62140 33-65401 33-65403 333-05743 333-05745 333-18283 333-18339 333-38786 333-38820

333-42471 333-42573 333-42343 333-42269 333-50068 333-50094 333-66038 333-66042 333-68193 333-

68135 333-68273 333-75694 333-79793 333-79829 333-88001 333-91173 333-91151 333-91167 333-

98737 333-125044 and 333-151015 of Robert Half International Inc of our report dated February 16 2012

relating to the consolidated financial statements financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting which appears in this Form 10-K

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Francisco California

February 16 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Harold Messmer Jr certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Robert Half International Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the

end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 16 2012

Is HAROLD MESSMER JR

Harold Messmer Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Keith Waddell certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Robert Half International Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 16 2012

Is KEITH WADDELL

Keith Waddell

Vice Chairman President and

Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 of Robert

Half International Inc the Form 10-K Harold Messmer Jr Chief Executive Officer of Robert Half

International Inc certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of Robert Half International Inc

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that
appears

in typed form within the electronic version of

this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Robert Half International Inc and will be

retained by Robert Half International Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request

February 16 2012 Is Harold Messmer Jr

Harold Messmer Jr

Chief Executive Officer

Robert Half International Inc



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 of Robert

Half International Inc the Form 10-K Keith Waddell Chief Financial Officer of Robert Half

International Inc certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of Robert Half International Inc

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of

this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Robert Half International Inc and will be

retained by Robert Half International Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request

February 16 2012 Is Keith Waddell

Keith Waddell

Chief Financial Officer

Robert Half International Inc
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